
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, January 26, 2015 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

   

1. Call to Order. 
 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

  
 
3. Roll Call. 

 
 
Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of January 12, 2015. 

 

 
Information 5. Monthly Operations Report for December 2014 (to be reviewed by the Budget & 

Finance Committee). 
 

 
 6. Written Communications.  

 

 
7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 
 

 
Motion 8. Approve the Publicly Available Pay Schedule (to be reviewed by the Personnel 

Committee).   
 

Motion 9. Approve the Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).   
 

Motion 10. Approve Minutes of the Joint Meeting of the Union Sanitary District Board and the 
Alameda County Water District Board Held September 25, 2014. 
 

Motion 11. Resolution No. ______, Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located Near the 
Intersection of Fremont Blvd and Landing Parkway in the City of Fremont (to be 
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).   
 

 

 
Page 1 of 127



 

Motion 12. Resolution No. ______, Quitclaim a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located at 47315 and 
47320 Mission Falls Court in the City of Fremont (to be reviewed by the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee).   
 

Motion 13. Resolution No. ______, Quitclaim One Sanitary Sewer Easement at 5347, 5335, 5323, 
and 5311 Jarvis Avenue in the City of Newark (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community 
Affairs Committee).    
 

Information  14.    Information Items: 
a. Check Register. 
b. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee).   
c. Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student Loan Program (to be reviewed 

by the Budget & Finance Committee).   
d. Solar Facilities Operational Update (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee).   
e. Update of the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment 

Plant (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).   
f. Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of January 15, 2015. 
g. Board Expenditures, 2nd Quarter, FY15 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee). 
 

 
Information  15. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  

a. Construction Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 1/22/15 at 9:30 a.m. 
b. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 1/22/15 at 5:30 p.m. 
c. Personnel Committee – scheduled for Friday, 1/23/15 at 9:30 a.m. 
d. Legal/Community Affairs Committee–scheduled for Wednesday, 1/21/15 at 4:30 p.m. 
 

 
Information  16.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 

 

 
Information       17.   Other Business: 

a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 
business and are welcome to request information from staff. 

b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 
18. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the Mid-year Budget Workshop in the 

Boardroom on February 5, 2015, at 11:00 a.m. 
 

 
19. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 

Boardroom on Monday, February 9, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 127



NOTICE OF       All meetings will be held in 
COMMITTEE MEETING     the General Manager’s Office 
 

 
BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 26, 2015 

       

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi) 
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy) 
 
 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Wednesday, January 21 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
9. Approve the Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of the East Bay 

Dischargers Authority. 
 
11. Resolution No. ______, Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located Near the Intersection of 

Fremont Blvd and Landing Parkway in the City of Fremont 
 
12. Resolution No. ______, Quitclaim a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located at 47315 and 47320 

Mission Falls Court in the City of Fremont. 
 
13. Resolution No. ______, Quitclaim One Sanitary Sewer Easement at 5347, 5335, 5323, and 

5311 Jarvis Avenue in the City of Newark. 
 
 
Construction Committee, Thursday, January 22, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
14e. Update of the Subsurface Investigation at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
 
Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, January 22, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
5. Monthly Operations Report for December 2014. 
 
14b. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report. 
 
14c. Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student Loan Program. 
 
14d. Solar Facilities Operational Update. 
 
14g. Board Expenditures, 2nd Quarter, FY15. 
 
 
Personnel Committee, Friday, January 23, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
8. Approve the Publicly Available Pay Schedule. 
 

 
Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 

(Gov. Code Section 11123) 
Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken. 

Page 3 of 127



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

January 12, 2015 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
 
President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
ROLL CALL. 
 
PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President  
  Tom Handley, Secretary 
  Pat Kite, Director 
  Anjali Lathi, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager  
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Coach  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager 
  Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary 
     
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 8, 2014. 
 
It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Board of Director’s Meeting held December 8, 2014.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR NOVEMBER, 2014. 
 
Paul Eldredge reported the following: 

• Two odor complaints were received in November, both in the City of Newark.  One 
was investigated with no odor found.  Upon investigating the other complaint, it 
was discovered three USD manholes had high sewer gas.  The odor was 
addressed, and staff conducted follow up testing for a week with no odors 
detected. 

• There were no recordable injuries in November. 
• Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction crews completed 840 preventive 

maintenance work orders, and completed 65 of 71 corrective work orders initiated 
in the month of November. 

• Collection Services Maintenance Team cleaned over 13 miles and inspected over 
10 miles of sanitary sewer.  Collection Services Construction Team completed 47 
main repairs and responded to 17 service requests. 

Page 4 of 127



• The plant effluent remained in compliance with all NPDES permit requirements.  
Approximately 67% of power required was produced by the Cogen. 

• An Administrative Order was issued to Safety-Kleen which was appealed, and the 
appeal was responded to.  Staff continued to work with Safety-Kleen to return to 
compliance. 

• The operation test for the Cogeneration Project engine generators and digester 
gas conditioning system was completed, and demolition of the existing digester 
gas equipment has begun. 

• Approximately 95% of the interior coating replacement for the Primary Digester 
No. 5 Rehabilitation Project has been completed, and the corrosion consultant 
completed their evaluation of the condition of the disaster dome and side skirt. 

• John Hwang joined the District as Construction Inspector II. 
• Andy Trinh joined the District as Engineering Technician I. 
• The Human Resources Administrator and Human Resources Analyst attended the 

California Public Employers’ Labor Relations Association Annual Conference on 
updates to employment law, labor relations court decisions, and best practices. 

• The General Manager met with Kris Braunschweig from Republic Services to 
discuss opportunities to partner together in the future. 

• The General Manager met with Fremont City Manager Fred Diaz to introduce 
himself, and let the City know the District values them. 

• The General Manager did a presentation for the League of Women Voters, in 
partnership with Alameda County Water District, titled “Water In/Water Out” at the 
Fremont Library. 

• The General Manager met with Jason Werner, General Manager of the Oro Loma 
Sanitation District. 

• Candidates were interviewed for Collection Services Manager and Treatment & 
Disposal Services Manager, and the two new Work Group Managers were hired 
in November. 

• A USD Video and a Newsletter Workshop were held in November. 
• The General Manager met with representatives from the Fremont Public Works 

Department for further discussions on their Fremont Boulevard widening project. 
 
Maria Scott reported the following: 

• Revenues – The District has received 74% of the total budget for capacity fees 
due to increased construction. 

• Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group – the General Manager/Admin budget 
was at 47% due to recently paid professional organization membership fees for 
the District. 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS. 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS. 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
 

Page 5 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. 2746, APPROVING EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY WAITING 
PERIOD FOR POST-RETIREMENT EMPLOYMENT FOR DAVID E. LIVINGSTON. 
 
The Personnel Committee reviewed this item.  Paul Eldredge stated Treatment & 
Disposal Services Manager Armando Lopez had less than three weeks to be mentored 
by the retiring manager, David E. Livingston.  Given the scope of responsibilities for Work 
Group Managers, it is critical there be sufficient time for the retiring Manager and the new 
Manager to work together to allow essential knowledge transfer to occur.  Retirement law 
allows for an agency to waive the 180-day period that typically elapses prior to the retired 
“annuitant” (employee) returning to temporary employment for the purpose of performing 
a special project/assignment.  This is the resolution the Board is being asked to approve. 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Approve Exception to 
the 180-Day Waiting Period for Post-Retirement Employment for David E. Livingston.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND TASK 
ORDER NO. 1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS FOR PROVIDING ENGINEERING 
SERVICES FOR THE DESIGN OF THE FREMONT AND PASEO PADRE LIFT 
STATIONS IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 
 
The Construction Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated the purpose of 
this item is to approve engineering services necessary to maintain the 30 year old 
Fremont and Paseo Padre Lift Stations (LS).  This Project would include replacement of 
two enclosed screw pumps at each the Fremont and Paseo Padre LS, structural and 
electrical improvements, and relocation of the existing Fremont LS generator.  Carollo 
Engineers was selected due to the experience of their engineering staff and their 
proposed approach to the Project.   
 
It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with Carollo Engineers in the 
Amount of $198,799 for Providing Engineering Services for the Design of the Fremont 
and Paseo Padre Lift Stations Improvements Project.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2747, ACCEPTING CONSTRUCTION OF THE BOYCE ROAD LIFT 
STATION PROJECT – PHASE 2 FROM PACIFIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
CORPORATION AND AUTHORIZE THE ATTORNEY FOR THE DISTRICT TO 
RECORD A NOTICE A COMPLETION. 
 
The Construction Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated the Board 
awarded the Project’s construction contract to Pacific Infrastructure Corporation (PIC) in 
the amount of $330,000 on May 12, 2014.  The purpose of the project was to make 
improvements necessary to maintain the Boyce Road Lift Station.  PIC substantially 
completed the project on December 9, 2014. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by President Fernandez, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2745, Accepting Construction of the Boyce Road Lift Station Project – 
Phase 2 From Pacific Infrastructure Corporation and Authorize the Attorney for the District 
to Record a Notice of Completion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Page 6 of 127



AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND TASK 
ORDER NO.1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS FOR THE PUMP STATION MASTER 
PLAN. 
 
The Construction Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated staff is 
recommending a Pump Station Master Plan be conducted to plan and budget for future 
improvements in order to maintain long-term capacity and reliability of the pump stations.  
Carollo Engineers was selected for this project due to their prior experience designing 
several pump station and force main project for the District, and qualifications of their 
personnel. 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 in the Amount of $175,465 with 
Carollo Engineers for the Pump Station Master Plan.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Check Register.  All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Pine Street Easement Improvements Project. 
Sami Ghossain stated the District owns and maintains a 12-inch diameter VCP sewer 
main that parallels Mammoth Creek in Fremont.  This pipeline aerially crosses a small 
creek tributary to Mammoth Creek, and approximately two feet of the aerial crossing’s 
eastern foundation has been exposed by erosion.  Further soil movements and erosion 
may result in damage, and failure could expose the tributary creek and Mammoth Creek 
to wastewater.  In January, 2015, the General Manager executed an Agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $58,887.  The scope of 
services for Task Order No. 1 includes agency coordination and permitting, a detailed 
evaluation of the two design alternatives approved by the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, and initial project design.  Task Order No. 1 is expected to be completed by late 
April, 2015.  A second task order for final project design will follow, with full design 
completion expected by summer of 2015. 
 
High Speed Aeration Blower Project.  
Sami Ghossain stated the General Manager will execute an Agreement and Task Order 
No. 1 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $96,500 to design the High Speed Aeration 
Blower Project.  The purpose of the Project is to install one 700-horsepower high speed 
aeration blower at the west aeration blower room, improve the blower room’s ventilation 
system, replace existing pipe gaskets, and check valves on the aeration pipe header.  
The detailed design of the Project is expected to be completed by June of 2015, and it 
is anticipated construction will be completed by early 2016.   
 
Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of December 18, 2014. 
President Fernandez reported the following: 

• The Managers Advisory Committee meeting included a presentation on Biogas 
Energy Maximization, provided by guest speaker David Schneider of Anaergia.   

• The Financial Management Committee recommended EBDA withdraw from 
CASA for one year due to the revised assessment of membership dues which 
raised EBDA’s membership fee from $1,500 to $8,500. 

Page 7 of 127



• The Regulatory Affairs Committee received an update from the General Manager 
on the status of the State Coastal Conservancy grant and the results of the first 
technical review workshop held at the Hayward Shoreline Interpretive Center on 
November 7. 

• The O&M Committee and the General Manager reviewed recent wet weather 
events as diversion to the Hayward Ponds was required due to high flows 
throughout the system. 

 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:   
 
The Construction, Budget & Finance, and Personnel Committees met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Paul Eldredge reported the following: 
 

• The Alameda County Water District (ACWD) will expand its low-flow toilet rebate 
program to include residential customers. 

• ACWD staff completed the minutes from the Joint Meeting of the Union Sanitary 
District Board and the Alameda County Water District Board held             
September 25, 2014.  The minutes will be submitted for approval at the next 
regular Board meeting. 

• The Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority will be presented at the next regular Board meeting. 

• The District received a public records request from the Bay Area News Group for 
2014 employee compensation, and staff will respond with the requested 
information. 

• An RFP for Services as General Counsel for the District was issued                
January 8, 2015. 

• Environmental Compliance staff are working on the pre-treatment compliance 
audit, which is conducted every 2-3 years. 

• Paul and staff will tour the Hayward March project with the Water Quality Control 
Board staff this week. 

• Staff continues to communicate with Safety-Kleen, and will keep the Board 
apprised of the situation. 

• There were 42 applications received for Collection Services Coach, and 20 for 
Wastewater Operations (TPO) Night Coach prior to close of recruitment.  
Interviews for the two positions will be held over the next few weeks, and the new 
Coach’s may start work as early as March. 

• At the last regular meeting, the Board had inquired about a recently paid claim 
that appeared on the check register.  Specifically, there was concern regarding 
an apparent lack of information presented to the Board prior to the claim being 
paid.  Paul stated the Board was not informed of the issue in advance, and staff 
will improve communication regarding such matters in the future.   

 
OTHER BUSINESS:   
 
Vice President Toy stated she attended the Alameda County Water District Finance 
Authority meeting on January 8, 2015.  Vice President Toy stated the meeting included 

Page 8 of 127



confirmation of officers for the upcoming year, and adoption of the conflict of interest 
code. 
 
President Fernandez inquired about the impact flushable wipes have had on the District.  
Armando Lopez stated solid material has not significantly increased, which may be due 
to the preventative work completed by the District’s Collection Services crews.  Paul 
Eldredge stated that most material, including flushable wipes, ends up on the bar screen 
and the width of the bar screens will soon be reduced to capture more material. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m. to the Newsletter Draft Review Workshop in the 
Centerville Conference Room on Monday, January 26, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, 
January 26, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY 
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
MANNY FERNANDEZ 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
 

Adopted this 26th day of January, 2015 

Page 9 of 127



  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 

DATE: January 20, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 - Meeting of January 26, 2015 
 Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for December, 2014 
  
Background 
 
Attached is the December 2014 Operations Report.  Staff is available to answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Table of Contents 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge GM   
Business Services     Rich Cortés  BS   
Collection Services     James Schofield CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Robert Simonich FMC 
 
Recommendation 
 
File Report.   

 

 

Page 10 of 127



GENERAL MANAGER’S SUMMARY 
 

Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during December 2014. 
 

ODOR COMPLAINTS:  There were three odor complaints received in December, two in Fremont 
and one in Newark.  Both of the Fremont complaints were investigated with no odor found.  
Investigation of the Newark complaint resulted in odors only detected within the home of the 
reporting party.  Staff relayed the findings to the resident, and recommended they check under 
their home for dead animals and run water through all their faucets. 
 
SAFETY: There were no injuries during the past month.  One employee on modified duty retired 
but we still have another employee on modified duty. One employee that has been off for a work 
related injury is now off because of a personal injury. The employee’s status is monitored closely 
since the conditions continue to change.  We continue to work with the industrial hygienist to 
document the employee exposure to the unknown waste at the Boyce lift station.  We had a minor 
vehicle accident where the USD vehicle hit the mirror on a transit bus.  The investigation is still 
underway.  There was a Safety Blog posting questioning the cleanliness of a locker room. The 
concern was brought to the attention of the staff so the issue could be addressed. 
 
FABRICATION, MAINTENANCE, AND CONSTRUCTION (FMC):   
 

• FMC Mechanics replaced return activated sludge (RAS) seals in Secondary Clarifier 
#2.  The RAS seals hold the return sludge inside the collection box at the base of the 
center column in the clarifier tank.  As the box rotates with the sludge collector the seals 
work between the moving box and the stationary column.  If the seals leak the clarifier 
effluent becomes fouled with sludge.  Also, the RAS is needed for the secondary treatment 
process to work properly.  It has to be collected effectively and returned to the aeration 
basins.  The seals are long, wide, thick rubber strips held on position by metal bands.  The 
clarifiers were refurbished a few years ago so these RAS seals have not been replaced 
before.  This was a new task for the Mechanics to perform so they had to develop 
procedures to get it done.  The condition of the seals indicated that they need to be 
replaced in all four clarifiers.  A second RAS seal has been changed, much more quickly 
this time, and more parts are on order to complete all the clarifiers. 

 
• December was a time of ongoing learning about the new cogeneration engines.  The 

four Mechanics who specialize in operation and maintenance of the system had lots of 
glitches and issues to troubleshoot and struggle through.  This familiarization process is 
essential to the success of the project and requires many hours of consulting manuals, 
text messages back and forth with manufacturers technicians and trying different things 
when the engines don’t perform.  The group has developed into a cohesive, mutually 
supportive team who share information among themselves and operate 
independently.  The next stage for this group is to figure out how much dedicated labor is 
needed on a continuing basis to provide support for the system.  A parallel project by the 
“cogen team” is underway to write preventive maintenance schedules and instructions to 
be included into the plant computerized maintenance system (CMMS, Hansen). 

 
• During December the Mechanics replaced a large hydraulic cylinder that lifts and 

lowers the Diversion Gate which can be opened to send incoming wastewater from the 
Alvarado Pump Station to the Site Waste Pump Station.  The “diversion” creates a back-
up method to move wastewater in the event of a failure in the Alvarado Pump Station and 
is an important redundant feature.  The hydraulic cylinder has to be repaired every few 

GM-1 
Page 11 of 127



years due to the corrosive atmosphere where the cylinder is located which damages the 
cylinder rod and causes oil leaks.  To replace the cylinder the Mechanics had to perform 
a Confined Space Entry into a deep vault and work far up from the floor of the vault.  The 
last time this repair was made the Mechanics installed cleats or brackets into the vault 
walls to support planks to stand on.  The planks almost fill the open area of the vault so 
the chance of falling into the vault is very low.  With a belt and suspenders approach to 
safety, the vault entrants wore harnesses that were connected to retrieval devices to 
ensure that they could not fall.  Using the crane truck the cylinder was lifted out and the 
new one was put in place easily and safely.  This was an example of how the FMC group 
strives to work, effectively and safely with an emphasis on preparation and preplanning. 

 
FINANCIAL:   

• Received $23.6M – first installment of sewer service charges from the County. 
• Received $326K in capacity fees for The Crossings @880, a business park. 
• Received approval from State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for Thickener 

SRF loan disbursement of $350K to be received in January. 
• $1.7M spent on capital and special projects. 

 
COLLECTION SYSTEM:   

• Cleaned over 21 miles of sanitary sewer 
• Inspected over 4 miles 
• Completed 31 sewer main repairs 
• Continued with the development and orientation of 2 new Collection System Workers. 
• Began CS Coach recruitment 
• Provided training on CS cleaning and inspection processes to members of the 

Environmental Protection Agency and State Board. 
 
PLANT OPERATIONS:   

• Reviewed the chlorine excursion incident of December 11, 2014, 
implemented  programming changes to the outfall automation, revised Plant SOPs, and 
followed up with the Regional Board. 

• Continued working with RMC on the preparation of the application for the Old Alameda 
Creek NPDES permit reissuance. 

• Reviewed the draft Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Project Options Draft Technical 
Memorandum. 

• Began preparing the technical submittal for the BACWA Nutrient Study reduction study 
required under the nutrient watershed permit. 

 
PROJECTS:  Updates of selected projects: 

• Safety-Kleen – A modified Administrative Order for Safety-Kleen will be issued.  Staff will 
continue to work with Safety-Kleen to monitor compliance. 

• Cogeneration Project – The engine generator system and digester gas conditioning 
system are fully operational and the demolition of the existing digester gas equipment is 
underway. 

• Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project – The contractor is approximately 80% 
complete with the digester side skirt repair. 

• Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – The installation of the electrical 
ductbank between Substation No. 1 and the Thickener Electrical Building was completed.  
The installation of the masonry building, deep well anode, and remaining ductbanks to 
take place in January. 

GM-1 
Page 12 of 127



• Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Project should be complete by end of January. 
 

STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 Recruitments and Selection 

• Armando Lopez was appointed Treatment & Disposal Services Manager 
• James Schofield was appointed Collection Services Manager 
• Mike Fulkerson joined the District as Plant Operator III Trainee 
• Steve Bullis joined the District as Collection System Worker I 

Other 
• The HRA presented the Publicly Available Pay Schedule to the Board on 

December 8, 2015. 
• The HRA participated with the General Manager in the Board workshop on 

Unclassified and Management benefits. 
 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of December, the GM was involved in the following: 

• Attended the CASA Federal Legislative Committee meeting. 
• Participated in a webinar hosted by CSDA titled “Must Have Communication 

Protocols for District Staff and Board Members” 
• Attended the Special Meeting Closed Session of the Board of Directors to discuss 

the Cease and Desist Order and Associated Administrative Order AO-14-001 
issued to Safety-Kleen regarding sewer discharges from the Newark Safety-Kleen 
facility. 

• Attended a special MAC meeting for the EBDA General Manager succession plan. 
• Participated in a conference call with Safety-Kleen. 
• Attended Andy Morrisson’s retirement party. 

 

GM-1 
Page 13 of 127



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 

 December 2014 

 

 During the recording period from December 01, 2014 through December 31, 2014, there were  
 three odor related service requests received by the District. 
 City:  Fremont 
 
 1. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  12/16/2014 Time:  10:15 am 
 Location:   TURNER CT Reported By: Robin Avery 
 Wind (from): South West Wind Speed:  5 mph 
 Temperature:  57 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 We inspected our USD mains and storm drain inlets in the area. We detected no odors.   
 We contacted the reporting party and relayed our findings that we detected no odors. 
 
 2. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  12/29/2014 Time:  11:10 am 
 Location:   PORTER ST Reported By: Preteek Sharma 
 Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  5 mph 
 Temperature:  63 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 We inspected our USD manholes and mains along with the storm drain inlets. We could not detect    
     any odors and was unable to locate a source or cause.  We contacted the reporting party and  
     relayed our findings to them. 
 
 City:  Newark 
 
 3. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  12/4/2014 Time:  12:00 pm 
 Location:   ABINGTON DR Reported By: Mrs. Clinton 
 Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed:  2 mph 
 Temperature:  63 Degrees F Weather: Overcast 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 We inspected our USD main lines around the home and they were flowing fine. The storm drains  
 around the address were clear also. There was no odor outside the home.  Odor was only within  
 the home in the bathroom and adjacent bedroom. We relayed our findings to the reporting party  
 and recommended that they check under their house for any dead animals and run water in all  
 their bathrooms. 

Page 14 of 127



!

#

#

!

#

!

#

!

#

[

#[

#

#

#

#

#
#

!

!

#

!

#

[

#
[

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
January to December 2014

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: December 2014

Odor Complaints: Jan. to Nov. 2014
No odor found (2)

Odor found, not related to USD (6)

Odor found, USD resolved (4)

No odor found (13)

#

!

[

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (1)

[ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

2. No odor found

1. No odor found

3. Odor found, not related to USD

Page 15 of 127



HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 28, 2014 to December 26, 2014

Reg. Total Historical FY14
DIVISION Hours Lt Duty O/T Leaves* Sick STD WC Sick STD WC Average Number 

of Employees
General Manager Staff 2,487 22 753 37 85 131

23% 1.1% 1.7%

Business Services 19,914 22 3,527 364 43 604 14
15% 1.6% 0.2% 1.6% 0.5% Current Number of

Vacant Positions (1)
Technical Services 26,484 65 3,742 392 1,039 238 4

12% 1.3% 3.4% 0.8%

Collection Services 25,567 2,418 5,673 1,236 109 43 1,791 718 1
18% 4.0% 0.3% 0.1% 2.5% 0.4% 0.2% Hours Worked Per

Week Per Employee (2)
Treatment & Disposal 22,319 541 2,849 115 1,344 408 35.15

11% 0.5% 2.0% 0.3%

FMC 18,828 1,096 4,156 827 161 323 1,019 74 107 Projected Average
18% 3.6% 0.7% 1.4% 3.1% 0.2% 0.1% Annual Sick Leave

Per Employee (3)
Totals 115,598 4,164 20,700 2,971 313 366 5,882 1,452 108 45.34
% 84.8% 3.1% 15.2% 2.2% 0.2% 0.3% 2.4% 0.5% 1.3%

(1)  Current vacancies include: Business Services (0), Collections (1), FMC (0), T&D (1), TS (2)

 

(2)  An employee using 3 weeks vacation, 11 holidays, 2 HEC days and 40 hours of sick leave will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year.  

     With four weeks vacation, 34.2 hours per week.

(3)  Target goal for sick leave incentive program is 47 hours per employee per year.

Page 16 of 127



 
 
 
 

Accomplishments 
 

 The Organizational Performance Program Manager (OPPM) met with various Quality SP’s and Coaches 
to verify/discuss FY 15 process improvement projects. 

 The OPPM created and presented “Big Picture” survey summary report to ET. 
 The OPPM presented Organizational and Team Orientation to new hires. 
 The OPPM invited and served as keynote Speaker for Tri-Valley ROP on behalf of the District. 
 The OPPM invited and facilitated BSC process/measure review with MMT team. 
 The OPPM provided comprehensive Plant Tour as part of the new hire orientation to the Assistant to the 

GM. 
 Armando Lopez was appointed to be the Treatment and Disposal Services Manager on 12/1/2014. 
 James Schofield was appointed to be the Collection Services Manager on 12/1/2014. 
 Recruitment for Plant Operations III Trainee was hired; Michael Fulkerson was hired on 12/2/2014.  
 Recruitment for Collection System Worker I was hired; Steve Bullis was hired on 12/8/2014.  
 The Human Resources Administrator (HRA) presented the Publicly Available Pay Schedule to the Board 

on December 8. 
 The HRA participated with the General Manager in the Board workshop on Unclassified and management 

benefits. 
 
 
 

Performance Measures 
 

AVERAGE MONTHLY YIELD      
  

 

0.00%

0.25%

0.50%

0.75%

1.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 1Yr Rolling Avg Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
Activities Report 
December 2014 

Page 17 of 127



BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2015    Year-to-date as of 12/31/14 50% of year elapsed
Unaudited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/14

  Capacity Fees $2,700,000 $2,347,449 87% $3,315,007
  Sewer Service Charges 47,448,461 24,253,613 51% 45,139,420
  Operating 848,500 419,631 49% 1,072,242
  Interest 299,000 129,342 43% 385,844
  Misc. (incl. LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 1,994,200 223,049 11% 297,776

 Subtotal Revenues $53,290,161 $27,373,083 51% $50,210,289

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener) 3,390,000 647,923 19% 2,424,739

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $56,680,161 $28,021,006 49% $52,635,028

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Prog.
       Capacity Projects $3,240,000 $1,128,292 35% $5,592,023
       Renewal & Repl. Projects 11,632,500 6,677,214 57% 14,195,068
  Operating 32,659,214 15,280,611 47% 30,751,966
  Special Projects 1,708,478 209,081 12% 775,361
  Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 543,540 271,770 50% 462,852
  Vehicle & Equipment 1,057,700 683 0% 784,695
  Information Systems 1,216,000 213,629 18% 848,449
  Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 26,696 11% 197,237
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000 20,294 290% 5,124
  County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 52,780 50% 105,559
  Misc. (A/R write-off) 0 0 0% 1,343
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans (Irv.,Wilw,LHH,Cdr,NPS, Sub1,Boyc,Prim Cl) 3,127,389 1,567,246 50% 4,675,361

Total Expenses $55,547,821 $25,448,297 46% $58,395,038

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $1,132,340 $2,572,709 ($5,760,010)

Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $170,900 $60,131 35% $166,233
General Manager/Admin. 1,036,505 595,137 57% 1,153,217
Business Services 4,666,100 2,294,558 49% 4,416,832
Collection Services 5,954,753 2,810,290 47% 5,460,336
Technical Services 5,247,562 2,413,140 46% 4,850,139
Treatment & Disposal Services 9,980,700 4,640,154 46% 9,739,655
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,602,694 2,467,201 44% 4,965,555

Total $32,659,214 $15,280,611 47% $30,751,966

Operating Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $22,966,422 $10,903,975 47% (54%)* $21,125,985
Repairs & Maintenance 1,828,375 752,592 41% 1,615,427
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,453,720 1,093,033 45% 2,442,617
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,217,697 2,444,145 47% 5,493,010
Fixed Assets 193,000 86,865 45% 74,927

Total $32,659,214 $15,280,611 47% $30,751,966

* Personnel Budget Target

Page 18 of 127



 
 

 
   

 
   

      

2,700,000

47,448,461

848,500 299,000 5,384,2002,347,449

24,253,613

419,631
129,342 870,972

$0
$5,000,000

$10,000,000
$15,000,000
$20,000,000
$25,000,000
$30,000,000
$35,000,000
$40,000,000
$45,000,000
$50,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service Charges   Operating   Interest   Misc. (incl. SRF proceeds,
LAVWMA)

USD Revenues 

Budget
Actual

14,872,500

32,666,214

1,708,478 543,540
1,057,700 1,216,000

250,000
3,233,389

7,805,506

15,300,905

209,081 271,770 683 213,629 26,696 1,620,026
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

  CIP   Operating/PRTM   Spec. Proj.   Retiree Med.   Vehic & Equip.   Info. Systems   Plant&P.S.   Debt+CntyFee+Misc

Total USD Expenses

Budget

Actual

170,900 1,036,505

4,666,100

5,954,753

5,247,562

9,980,700

5,602,694

60,131 595,137

2,294,558
2,810,290 2,413,140

4,640,154

2,467,201

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board GM/Admin. BS CS TS T&D FMC

Operating Expenses by Work Group

Budget
Actual

22,966,422

1,828,375 2,453,720

5,217,697

193,000

10,903,975

752,592 1,093,033 2,444,145
86,865

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Operating Supplies &
Matls

Outside Services Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type

Budget Actual

Page 19 of 127



 

 

 

Maturity 
Range 

Face 
Amount/Shares 

YTM @ 
Cost Cost Value 

Days To 
Maturity 

% of 
Portfolio Market Value Book Value 

Duration To 
Maturity 

0-1 Month 1,240,000.00 0.554 1,261,670.00 11 6.37 1,240,189.82 1,240,381.66 0.03 

1-3 Months 2,240,000.00 0.889 2,379,630.00 63 12.02 2,253,409.55 2,253,161.27 0.17 

3-6 Months 240,000.00 0.523 239,918.40 162 1.21 240,248.02 239,975.24 0.45 

6-9 Months 2,545,000.00 0.559 2,579,693.20 192 13.03 2,557,879.20 2,555,236.39 0.53 

9-12 Months 2,000,000.00 0.330 2,040,480.00 334 10.31 2,020,000.00 2,019,042.70 0.91 

1-2 Years 8,956,000.00 0.608 8,985,768.60 507 45.39 8,988,665.73 8,988,321.50 1.38 

2-3 Years 2,313,000.00 1.129 2,307,603.57 845 11.66 2,310,154.90 2,307,657.47 2.29 

Total / Average 19,534,000.00 0.663 19,794,763.77 398 100 19,610,547.22 19,603,776.23 1.08

 

All Portfolio Holdings Distribution by Asset Class 

Operating Fund Holdings Distribution by Asset Class 

Operating Fund Maturity Distribution 

Page 20 of 127



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 12/31/2014

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

Agencies

FHLMC 0.5 6/20/2016-
14 3134G4N38 Moodys-

Aaa 12/20/2013 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.500 996,530.00 0.500 3/20/2015 6/20/2016 2.16

FHLMC 1.05 
6/30/2017-15 3134G5TE5 Moodys-

Aaa 12/30/2014 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.050 1,000,700.00 1.050 6/30/2015 6/30/2017 2.16

FNMA 0.5 3/30/2016 3135GOVA8 Moodys-
Aaa 1/24/2014 1,000,000.00 1,000,750.00 0.500 1,005,910.00 0.465 3/30/2016 2.16

Sub Total / Average 3,000,000.00 3,000,750.00 0.683 3,003,140.00 0.672 6.47

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,791.41 9,791.41 0.050 9,791.41 0.050 N/A N/A 0.02

Sub Total / Average 9,791.41 9,791.41 0.050 9,791.41 0.050 0.02

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 1 
10/24/2016 02006LKM4 None 10/23/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.000 240,000.00 1.000 10/24/2016 0.52

American Express Bank 
1.1 10/24/2016 02587CBZ2 None 10/23/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.100 240,000.00 1.100 10/24/2016 0.52

Bank of Baroda NY US 
0.4 1/22/2015 06062AFE4 None 1/22/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.400 240,033.62 0.400 1/22/2015 0.52

Beal Bank USA 0.45 
9/2/2015 07370WLQ7 None 12/3/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.450 240,146.42 0.450 9/2/2015 0.52

BMW Bank North 
America 0.5 3/14/2016 05568P6V4 None 3/31/2014 240,000.00 239,760.00 0.500 239,848.10 0.552 3/14/2016 0.52

Capital One Bank 1 
10/24/2016 140420QG8 None 10/22/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.000 240,000.00 1.000 10/24/2016 0.52

Discover Bank 0.5 
6/11/2015 254671D72 None 12/24/2013 240,000.00 239,918.40 0.500 240,248.02 0.523 6/11/2015 0.52

GE Capital Retail Bank 
0.95 3/16/2015 36157PAU3 None 1/2/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.950 240,369.55 0.950 3/16/2015 0.52

Great Midwest Bank 
0.75 7/27/2016 39083PCK6 None 10/27/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,182.59 0.750 7/27/2016 0.52

Page 21 of 127



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

Merrick Bank 0.5 
6/30/2015 5912Y5Y9 None 12/30/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.500 240,241.13 0.500 6/30/2015 0.52

Sub Total / Average 2,400,000.00 2,399,678.40 0.715 2,401,069.43 0.723 5.18

Corporate Issues

Caterpillar Financial 1 
3/3/2017 14912L5Z0 Moodys-A2 12/23/2014 1,313,000.00 1,307,603.57 1.000 1,309,454.90 1.190 3/3/2017 2.82

General Electric Capital 
Corp 1.625 7/2/2015 36962G5Z3 Moodys-A1 3/31/2014 1,000,000.00 1,014,530.00 1.625 1,006,280.00 0.460 7/2/2015 2.19

General Electric Capital 
Corp 2.15 1/9/2015 36962G5M2 Moodys-A1 8/16/2013 1,000,000.00 1,021,670.00 2.150 1,000,156.20 0.590 1/9/2015 2.20

General Electric Capital 
Corp 2.375 6/30/2015 36962G5F7 Moodys-A1 11/30/2012 500,000.00 517,745.00 2.375 504,850.00 0.980 6/30/2015 1.12

General Electric Capital 
Corp 4.875 3/4/2015 36962GP65 Moodys-A1 9/18/2013 1,000,000.00 1,059,830.00 4.875 1,007,320.00 0.750 3/4/2015 2.29

Internaltional Business 
Machs 0.45 5/6/2016 459200HL8 Moodys-

Aa3 11/26/2013 1,000,000.00 996,840.00 0.450 996,990.00 0.580 5/6/2016 2.15

JP Morgan Chase 2.6 
1/15/2016 46625HHW3 Moodys-A3 12/1/2014 566,000.00 577,518.10 2.600 575,701.24 0.775 1/15/2016 1.25

JP Morgan Chase 4.75 
3/1/2015 46625HCE8 Moodys-A3 1/2/2013 1,000,000.00 1,079,800.00 4.750 1,005,720.00 1.012 3/1/2015 2.33

Royal Bank of Canada 
2.3 7/20/2016 78008TLB8 Moodys-

Aa3 12/23/2014 1,190,000.00 1,217,310.50 2.300 1,214,442.60 0.830 7/20/2016 2.63

Well Fargo Bank 0.75 
7/20/2015 94985H5F7 Moodys-

Aa3 3/31/2014 565,000.00 567,418.20 0.750 566,361.65 0.420 7/20/2015 1.22

Sub Total / Average 9,134,000.00 9,360,265.37 2.335 9,187,276.59 0.779 20.19

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 26,548,515.35 26,548,515.35 0.267 26,548,515.35 0.267 N/A N/A 57.27

Sub Total / Average 26,548,515.35 26,548,515.35 0.267 26,548,515.35 0.267 57.27

Treasury

T-Bond 0.25 5/16/2016 912828VC1 Moodys-
Aaa 1/24/2014 1,000,000.00 994,530.00 0.250 997,890.00 0.488 5/16/2016 2.15

T-Note 0.375 
2/15/2016 912828UM0 Moodys-

Aaa 1/24/2014 1,000,000.00 999,530.00 0.375 1,000,390.00 0.398 2/15/2016 2.16

T-Note 0.5 6/15/2016 912828VG2 Moodys-
Aaa

3/27/2014 1,000,000.00 999,530.00 0.500 1,000,781.20 0.521 6/15/2016 2.16

Page 22 of 127



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

T-Note 1.375 
11/30/2015 912828PJ3 Moodys-

Aaa 12/20/2013 2,000,000.00 2,040,480.00 1.375 2,020,000.00 0.330 11/30/2015 4.40

Sub Total / Average 5,000,000.00 5,034,070.00 0.780 5,019,061.20 0.413 10.86

Total / Average 46,092,306.76 46,353,070.53 0.790 46,168,853.98 0.436 100

Page 23 of 127

debik
Typewritten Text
All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District's Investment Policy.The District will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months.Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statements.

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text

debik
Typewritten Text



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Activity
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
From 11/30/2014 To 12/31/2014

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends
Coupon 

Rate
YTM @ 
Cost

Settlement 
Date Total

BUY

Beal Bank USA 0.45 9/2/2015 07370WLQ7 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.00 0.450 0.450 12/3/2014 240,000.00

Caterpillar Financial 1 3/3/2017 14912L5Z0 1,313,000.00 1,307,603.57 4,011.94 1.000 1.190 12/23/2014 1,311,615.51

FHLMC 1.05 6/30/2017-15 3134G5TE5 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 1.050 1.050 12/30/2014 1,000,000.00

JP Morgan Chase 2.6 1/15/2016 46625HHW3 566,000.00 577,518.10 5,559.38 2.600 0.775 12/1/2014 583,077.48

Royal Bank of Canada 2.3 7/20/2016 78008TLB8 1,190,000.00 1,217,310.50 11,632.25 2.300 0.830 12/23/2014 1,228,942.75

Sub Total / Average 4,309,000.00 4,342,432.17 21,203.57 4,363,635.74

DEPOSIT

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.44 0.44 0.00 0.000 12/31/2014 0.44

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 22,100,000.00 22,100,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/15/2014 22,100,000.00

Sub Total / Average 22,100,000.44 22,100,000.44 0.00 22,100,000.44

INTEREST

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 0.44 0.000 12/31/2014 0.44

Discover Bank 0.5 6/11/2015 254671D72 0.00 0.00 601.64 0.500 0.000 12/11/2014 601.64

FHLMC 0.5 6/20/2016-14 3134G4N38 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.500 0.000 12/20/2014 2,500.00

General Electric Capital Corp 2.375 
6/30/2015 36962G5F7 0.00 0.00 5,937.50 2.375 0.000 12/30/2014 5,937.50

Great Midwest Bank 0.75 7/27/2016 39083PCK6 0.00 0.00 147.95 0.750 0.000 12/27/2014 147.95

Merrick Bank 0.5 6/30/2015 5912Y5Y9 0.00 0.00 98.63 0.500 0.000 12/28/2014 98.63

T-Note 0.5 6/15/2016 912828VG2 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.500 0.000 12/15/2014 2,500.00

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 11,786.16 11,786.16

WITHDRAW

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/1/2014 2,000,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 800,000.00 800,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/3/2014 800,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 300,000.00 300,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/5/2014 300,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,300,000.00 1,300,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/19/2014 1,300,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/23/2014 2,500,000.00Page 24 of 127



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Face 

Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends
Coupon 

Rate
YTM @ 
Cost

Settlement 
Date Total

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,450,000.00 1,450,000.00 0.00 0.000 12/29/2014 1,450,000.00

Sub Total / Average 8,350,000.00 8,350,000.00 0.00 8,350,000.00

Page 25 of 127



             Union Sanitary District's Internal Retiree Medical Fund

             Quarterly Report

     For Period Ended 12/31/14

Fund Balance 9/30/14: $415,242.76

Revenues:
0.00

Expenses:

Net Medical Reimbursments (2,500.53)

Transfers Out:

12/12/14 CalPERS OPEB Trust Annual Required Contrib. (ARC) (135,885.00)

(payment #2 of 4)

Ending Fund Balance 12/31/14: $276,857.23

Page 26 of 127



Union Sanitary District
CERBT Strategy 2
Entity #:  SKB7-6011550262
Quarter Ended December 31, 2014

 

Please note that the Grand Total is your actual fund account balance at the end of the period, including all accrued Contributions and Distributions. Please review your statement promptly. All information contained in your statement will be considered
 true and accurate unless you contact us within 30 days of receipt of this statement. If you have questions about the validity of this information, please contact CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov.

 

311,037.993 311,037.993

$4,237,438.38 $4,164,016.42
13.62354013.623540Period Ending Unit Value

13.79321313.472335Period Beginning Unit Value

(11,020.178)

20,001.474

302,056.697

(5,627.772)

10,053.357

306,612.408

Year to DateCurrent Period

Ending Units

Unit Sales for Withdrawals

Unit Purchases from Contributions

Beginning Units

Unit Value Summary:Market Value Summary:

$4,237,438.38$4,237,438.38Grand Total

(150,098.19)

(2,393.02)

0.00

(48,172.63)

271,770.00

$4,092,910.26

(76,676.23)

(1,200.33)

0.00

48,644.90

135,885.00

$4,130,785.04

Year to DateCurrent Period

Ending Balance

Distribution

Admin Expense

Other

Investment Earnings

Contribution

Beginning Balance

QTD Fiscal QTD Fiscal

YTD Accrual 0.00 73,421.96

Transfer In

Transfer Out

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Unit Transfer In

Unit Transfer Out

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

1

Page 27 of 127



Statement of Transaction Detail for the Quarter Ending 12/31/2014

Union Sanitary District

Entity #:  SKB7-6011550262

Date Description Amount Unit Value Units NotesCheck/Wire

11/05/2014 Distribution ($76,676.23) $13.624615 (5,627.772)   

12/12/2014 Contribution $135,885.00 $13.516380 10,053.357 wire 
2014121200194
864

 

If you have any questions or comments regarding the new statement format please contact CERBT4U@CalPERS.ca.gov

Client Contact:

CERBT4U@CalPERS.ca.gov

2

Page 28 of 127



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

December 2014 
    

Progress/Accomplishments     
           

 Completed 114,185 feet of cleaning and 23,259 feet of televising of sewer lines in December 
 Responded to 38 service request calls in December 
 Completed a total of 31 main repairs in December 
 Marked and located all sewer lines (Underground Service Alerts) 
 Provided support on the following projects: Upper Hetch Hetcy Trunk Line Lining, Newark 

Backyard Lateral Relocation, Alvarado Site use Study, Field Automation Pilot, & Plant Shut 
Downs 

 Participated in a CSOTF Benchmarking meeting 
 Continued training of 4 Collection System Worker I employees 
 Continued on our progress on catching up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 Participated in a Benchmarking meeting with CASSE 
 Concluded recruitment for CSWI and CS Manager 
 Began recruitment process for CS Coach 
 Provided training on CS cleaning and inspection processes to members of the Environmental 

Protection Agency and State Water Board. 
 
Training for Collections included;  

Tractor Loader Backhoe pre-trip inspection, loading, transporting, driving & operations. Skid Steer 
Loader Training and assessments for 6 employees. 
 

Future Planning 
 

 Continue effort of to catch up on 72 Month Cleaning and Inspection PMP 
 
 

Performance Measures 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 29 of 127



 
                

Other Collection Services Status Data: 
 

Support Team Work Order Status: 
 

         

C/S Maintenance Status: 
   

   

Page 30 of 127



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2014 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Boyce Road Lift Station Project – Phase 2 – Contractor installed plug valve actuators and the 
associated conduits in the bypass underground vault, and completed startup testing for the plug 
valve actuators. The project is substantially complete. 
 
Cogeneration Project – The engine generator system and digester gas conditioning system 
are fully operational.  The contractor continued with on-site work including demolition of 
existing digester gas piping and equipment.  Staff is negotiating a time extension change order 
with the contractor. 
 
Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement – Punchlist and closeout work is underway, should be 
completed in January. 
 
Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project – Contractor commenced with change order 
work to make repairs to the digester dome steel skirt.  Repairs were necessary due to 
extensive corrosion damage to the steel.  The contractor is approximately 80% complete with 
this change order repair. 
 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – The installation of the electrical 
ductbank between Substation No. 1 and the Thickener Electrical Building was completed.  The 
installation of the masonry building, deep well anode and remaining ductbanks to take place in 
January. 
 
Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Demobilization, street restoration, site 
improvements, and other misc. work items are in progress.  Project should be completed by 
the end of January. 
 
 

Customer Service 
Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 

Fremont Newark Union City Total 
27 7 4 38 

 
Communication & Graphics 

• Newsletter project management 
o Researched and developed content 
o Researched photos and images 

• Planned and presented at Board Workshop: USD newsletter 
• Continued Union City Chamber Board activities 

o Elected Board President for 2015 
o Attended December Board meeting 

• Public Website redesign project activities: 
o Continued activities to obtain team input regarding information migration and 

desired attributes of new site 
Page 31 of 127



o Presented at Budget/Finance Committee meeting with IT Project Mgr. 
o Presented to Board with IT Project Mgr. 

• Website Updates: 
o Updated Financial pages – created graphics, updated text 

• Designed CAFR cover and internal pages for Maria Scott 
• Confirmed booking for Christmas-week ad in Tri-City voice for EC  
• Conducted interviews with staff for next Employee newsletter; took photo of staff 

members 
• Redesigned Holiday gift drive poster for Charity Committee 

 
 
Environmental Compliance 

 
Pollution Prevention Program 

# of Dental 
Inspections 

# of School Outreach Events  
including Sewer Science 

# of Plant Tours 

17 1 0 
 

Misc. Pollution Prevention (Dental trainings, Plumbing Contractor training, etc.) 
Name of Event Date 

None  
 

Reports (Annual Pollution Prevention, City of Fremont reports, etc.) 
Report Name Date Report Completed and 

Submitted 
None  

 
Pollution and Prevention 

Inspections Illicit 
Discharge 

Complaints 

Enforcement Actions 

UR FOG Total  Type UR FOG 
79 30 109 1 Verbal Warning 10 5 
    Notice of Deficiency 0 0 
    Warning Letter 0 4 
    Notices of Violation 7 0 
    Admin Fine 4 0 
    Legal Action 0 0 

 
Industrial 

Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 
Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 

None  
 
Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
None  

 
Page 32 of 127



Permits Issued  
Company Name Date Permit Issued 

None  
  

 
Industrial Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
None  

 
Enforcement Action 

Violation IU Name & 
Nature of 
Business 

City  
(F, 
N,   
UC) 

Parameters 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 
(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated 
(mg/L) 

Comments 

None       

(1) Warning Letter (WL), Notice of Violation (NOV), Administrative Order (AO), Cease & Desist Order 
(C&D), Significant Non Compliance (SNC), (EM) Enforcement Meeting 

(2) Fremont (F)     Newark (N)     Union City (UC) 
(3) Daily Max (DM)   Monthly Average (MA) 

 
Other - Team training, Special Meetings, Conferences, Special Recognition, IAC (topics) 

 
Activity Date of Event Attendees 

 None   
 

Engineering/Construction 
 Construction Projects Capital 

($1000) 
Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
December 2014 Activity 

1. Boyce Road LS Phase 
2 – Curtis/Thomas  

$330 12/9 100% 100% Installed plug valve 
actuators and the 
associated conduits in 
the bypass 
underground vault. 
Completed startup 
testing for plug valve 
actuators. The project 
is substantially 
complete 

2. Cogeneration Project – 
Raymond 

$10,566 9/14 98% 100% Both engine 
generator and 
digester gas 
conditioning systems 
fully operational.  
Contractor continued 
with on-site 
demolition work. 

3. Jarvis Ave. SS 
Replacement – Chris E. 

$1,048 11/14 100% 100% Complete punchlist 
and closeout in 
January. 

Page 33 of 127



 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
December 2014 Activity 

4. Thickener Control 
Building Improvements 
Project – Curtis 

$9,990 9/16 9% 22% Completed the 
installation of 
ductbank between 
Substation No. 1 and 
Thickener Electrical 
Building. 

5. Upper Hetch Hetchy SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E. 

$3,021 1/15 90% 89% Demob, street 
restoration, and site 
improvements in 
progress. 

6. Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project - 
Chris P. 

$779 12/14 70% 100% Contractor worked on 
Field Order No. 1 – 
Dome skirt repair.  
This will result in a 
time extension for the 
project.   

 
 
Design/Study 

 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
December 2014 Activity 

1. Irvington Basin Master 
Plan Update – Capacity 
Assessment - Rollie 

$231 6/15 
 

11% 40% Flow meters installed 
and monitoring has 
begun. 

2. Local Limits and 
Wastewater Treatability 
Study – Michael D. 

$107 6/15 98% 100% Continuing study to 
determine if new 
Organics limits are 
necessary. 

3. Seismic Study - 
Raymond 

$148 9/14 98% 100% Negotiating 
amendment with 
Degenkolb for 
detailed seismic 
evaluation of 4 
structures. 

4. Cast Iron Lining Phase 
VI – Andrew 

In-
House 

12/14 100% 98% Updated plans and 
specifications per 
review comments 
and will prepare final 
design submittal to 
be approved for bid. 

5. Miscellaneous Spot Re-
pairs Phase VI – 
Andrew 

In-
House 

3/15 98% 43% 75% design submittal 
is in progress. 

6. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation – Chris E. 

$248 4/15 56% 56% 90% design submittal 
in progress. 

7. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E. 

$59 4/15 5% 13% Agency coordination, 
permitting, alternative 
evaluation, and 50% 
design underway. 

Page 34 of 127



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
December 2014 Activity 

8. Plant Site Use Study – 
Curtis 

$200 6/15 36% 43% Workshop No. 2 
scheduled for 
January 6th. 

9. MCC and PLC 
Replacement Project, 
Phase 3 – Chris P. 

$78 6/15 40% 40% Project is still in 
design.  The 50% 
design meeting will 
occur on Jan. 13th. 

10. Generator Controls 
Upgrade Project – Chris 
P. 

$72 6/15 10% 10% Conducted kickoff 
meeting for the 
Project.   

11. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project – 
Thomas 

TBD 6/15 10% 15% Consultant is working 
on preliminary design 
effort. 

12. Plant Lighting Study – 
Thomas 

$50 3/15 25% 25% Had kickoff meeting 
on 12/8. Consultant 
completed the 2 days 
daytime site lighting 
survey 

13. Administrative and Field 
Operations Buildings 
Leak Investigation – 
Chris P. 

$51 10/14 100% 100% Project on hold until 
the seismic study is 
complete and 
buildings impacts are 
known.  The direction 
of the Project will be 
decided at that time. 

14. Pump Station Master 
Plan – Raymond 

$175 7/15 0% 0% Completed task order 
negotiations with 
Carollo.  Awaiting 
Board approval on 
January 12th.  Kickoff 
meeting will be 
scheduled in late 
January. 

15. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation – Phase 2 – 
Rollie/Al B. 

$200 3/15 63% 63% Received 75% plans 
and specification 
from West Yost for 
review and comment.  
Mailed lateral 
relocation designs to 
property owners for 
approval. 

16. Aeration Blower Project 
– Chris P. 

$96 3/15 0% 0% Negotiated design 
order with Carollo.  
District will execute 
agreement and task 
order with Carollo in 
January. 

 

Page 35 of 127

















Future Planning

















Schedule a meeting with the Regional Board to discuss progress with the 
Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Study.

Provide a tour of the Hayward Marsh to the Regional Water Board staff.

Submit application for the Old Alameda Creek NPDES permit reissuance.

Continued working with RMC on the preparation of the application for the Old 
Alameda Creek NPDES permit reissuance.

Reviewed the chlorine excursion incident of December 11, 2014, implemented  
programming changes to the outfall automation, revised Plant SOPs, and 
followed up with the Regional Board.

Research opportunities for testing digester enzymes to increase digester gas 
production at the treatment plant.

Other

Reviewed the draft Hayward Marsh Rehabilitation Project Options Draft 
Technical Memorandum.

Prepare for the ELAP recertification of the treatment plant laboratory.

Cogen system produced 68.8% of power consumed for the month of December.

Submit two technical submittals for the BACWA Nutrient Study reduction study 
information as required under the nutrient watershed permit.
Prepare annual reporting for the Old Alameda Creek intermittant wet weather 
discharge permit.

Began preparing the technical submittal for the BACWA Nutrient Study 
reduction study required under the nutrient watershed permit.
Began researching codigestion of organics for a plant pilot project.
Participated in a WEF Secondry Sedimentation Webinar.

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report
December 2014

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 100% preventive maintenance activities for the month of December.

Page 36 of 127



Performance Measurements

0

300

600

900

1200

1500

1800

2100

2400

2700

3000

kw
h/

M
G

Plant kwh per Million Gallons

kwh/MG Purchased kwh/MG Generated Target

0

250

500

750

1000

1250

1500

1750
TPO PM WO's Completed vs Pending

Completed Pending

25000
40000
55000
70000
85000

100000
115000
130000
145000
160000
175000

Co-gen Energy Value

Not normalized for the cost of natural gas purchased.

Page 37 of 127



Parameter

SS 30 mg/l
BOD 25 mg/l
F. Coliform 500, 5-Day Log Mean

1100, 90th Percentile

Copper 78 µg/l
Nickel 79 µg/l
Mercury 0.066 µg/l
Cyanide < 3.0 42 µg/l

0.00324
3.4
3.8

6
26 - 55

Monthly Average

16

51 - 79

NPDES Permit Limits

Operational/NPDES Performance

20

22

24

26

28

30

m
g/

d

Flow

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14

Results

EFF. SS CBOD SS Limit CBOD Limit

Page 38 of 127



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l Utility Worker obtained Class B driving permit.

Mechanic I passed Job Competency Requirement to operate pump stations.

Performance Measurements

Future Planning

Replace air compressors in Alvarado Pump Station.
Remove and diassemble Alvarado Pump #1.

Other

Overhaul Irvington Pump Station #2 pump.

Completed 90% preventive maintenance activities for the month of December.

Completed 82 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of December.

Replaced rubber seals on all weir gates on RAS splitter box to East Aeration Basin.
Replaced secondary clarifier #3 RAS seals.

Assemble and install centrifuge #1.

                FMC 
                 Activities Report

              December 2014

Progress/Accomplishments

0

5

10

15

20

Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s 

Priority A Repairs Required 

Total Target

Page 39 of 127



0

25

50

75

100

125

150
N

o
.  

o
f 

 W
O

s 

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month 

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o

. o
f 

W
O

s 

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days 

# WO's Target

Page 40 of 127



 

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney

 

 

DATE: January 26, 2015  

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Rich Cortes, Business Services Work Group Manager 
  Judi Berzon, Human Resources Administrator 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of January 26, 2015 
APPROVE THE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE 
 

 
Recommendation:  The President, USD Board of Directors, sign the January 1, 2015 
Pay Schedule which will be posted and retained in accordance with CalPERS 
requirements.   
 
Background: 

Publicly Available Pay Schedule 

The Publicly Available Pay Schedule, mandated by CalPERS in August 2011, is 
designed to: 1) ensure consistency between CalPERS employers; and, 2) enhance the 
disclosure and transparency of public employee compensation. 

The “Publicly Available Pay Schedule” (CCR 570.5) must: 

 be duly approved and adopted by the employer’s governing body in accordance 
with requirements of applicable public meetings laws; 

 identify the position title for every employee position; 
 show the pay rate for each identified position as a single amount or as multiple 

amounts within a range; 
 indicate the time base (i.e., bi-weekly, monthly, etc.); 

Page 41 of 127



 be posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available 
for public review from the employer during normal business hours or posted on 
the employer’s internet website; 

 indicate an effective date and date of any revisions; 
 be retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than 5 

years; 

The changes to the Publicly Available Pay Schedule reflect the retirements on 
December 30, 2014 of Andy Morrison, Collection Service Manager, and David 
Livingston, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager, at which time their salary ranges 
were eliminated.  New salary ranges were established prior to the recruitments for 
Collection Services Manager and Treatment and Disposal Service Manager and are 
shown on the updated Publicly Available Pay Schedule the Board is being asked to 
approve. These salary ranges were used in establishing the starting salaries of the two 
new Work Group Managers.  

The Publicly Available Pay Schedule has also been modified to include the Board 
member compensation of $212.10 per meeting to the statement agreed to by the Board 
of Directors on December 8, 2014.  

Attachment:  Union Sanitary District Pay Schedule Effective January 1, 2015  
 

Page 42 of 127



Position Title
Minimum          

Bi‐Weekly Pay      

Rate

Maximum         

Bi‐Weekly Pay 

Rate

Accounting Tech Specialist $2,938.38 $3,571.62

Accounting Technician II $2,611.90 $3,174.78

Administrative Specialist I  $2,320.92 $2,821.10

Administrative Specialist II $2,443.06 $2,969.57

Assistant Engineer $3,427.81 $4,499.00

Assistant to the General Manager $2,924.79 $3,838.79

Assistant Storekeeper $2,256.82 $2,743.18

Associate Engineer $3,821.77 $5,016.08

Buyer I  $2,455.78 $3,223.21

Buyer II $2,889.16 $3,792.02

Chemist I $3,193.43 $3,881.64

Chemist II $3,353.11 $4,075.73

Coach, Business Services  $4,426.46 $5,809.72

Coach, Capital Improvement Projects $5,128.54 $6,731.21

Coach, Collection Services  $4,105.64 $5,388.65

Coach, Customer Service $4,580.38 $6,011.74

Coach, Electrical & Instrumentation $4,150.57 $5,447.62

Coach, Environmental Compliance $4,120.45 $5,408.09

Coach ‐ Mechanical Maintenance $4,032.52 $5,292.68

Coach, Research & Support/Sr. Process Engineer $4,580.38 $6,011.74

Coach, Total Plant Operations  $4,063.75 $5,333.68

Collection System Worker I  $2,397.86 $2,914.61

Collection System Worker II $2,637.65 $3,206.08

Communications Coordinator  $3,257.39 $3,959.38

Construction Inspector I $2,790.06 $3,391.33

Construction Inspector II $3,069.05 $3,730.45

Construction Inspector III $3,191.82 $3,879.68

Customer Service Fee Analyst $2,652.14 $3,223.70

Engineering Technician I $2,692.06 $3,272.21

Engineering Technician II $2,961.26 $3,599.42

Engineering Technician III $3,257.39 $3,959.38

Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector I $2,635.74 $3,203.75

Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector II $2,965.26 $3,604.30

Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector III $3,291.44 $4,000.77

Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector IV $3,521.84 $4,280.82

Environmental Control (EC) Outreach Representative $3,291.44 $4,000.77

Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager $3,798.63 $4,985.70

Environmental Program Coordinator  $3,728.03 $4,893.04

Effective January 1, 2015

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT PAY SCHEDULE

1
Page 43 of 127



Position Title
Minimum          

Bi‐Weekly Pay      

Rate

Maximum         

Bi‐Weekly Pay 

Rate

Effective January 1, 2015

Fleet Mechanic I $2,658.62 $3,231.57

Fleet Mechanic II $2,977.66 $3,619.36

General Manager $7,074.72 $9,285.56

Human Resources Administrator $4,591.87 $6,026.83

Human Resources Analyst  $3,210.96 $4,214.38

InformationTechnology Administrator $4,367.30 $5,732.08

Information Technology Analyst  $3,089.29 $4,054.70

Instrument Tech/Electrician $3,274.86 $3,980.62

Janitor $1,778.16 $2,161.36

Junior Engineer $3,085.03 $4,049.10

Laboratory Director $3,972.02 $4,828.02

Lead Collection System Worker $2,901.42 $3,526.69

Maintenance Assistant $1,142.49 $1,388.70

Manager, Business Services $6,291.21 $8,257.22

Manager, Collection Services $5,528.78 $7,256.52

Manager, Maintenance  $5,528.78 $7,256.52

Manager, Technical Services $6,107.76 $8,016.44

Manager, Treatment & Disposal Services  $5,528.78 $7,256.52

Mechanic I $2,689.63 $3,269.26

Mechanic II $3,012.40 $3,661.59

Mechanic XL $3,714.66 $3,844.68

Organizational Performance Program Manager $3,985.83 $5,231.41

Painter $2,764.26 $3,359.97

Planner/Scheduler I $3,088.00 $3,753.49

Planner/Scheduler II $3,320.65 $4,036.27

Plant Operations Trainer $3,647.89 $4,434.03

Plant Operator I $2,565.98 $3,118.97

Plant Operator II $2,848.26 $3,462.07

Plant Operator III $3,257.04 $3,958.94

Plant Operator XL $4,016.32 $4,156.90

Principal Engineer  $4,640.11 $6,090.14

Principal Financial Analyst $3,694.37 $4,848.86

Purchasing Agent $3,637.65 $4,774.42

Receptionist $2,029.41 $2,466.76

Senior Accountant $3,314.23 $4,349.93

Senior Database Administrator / Developer $3,875.52 $5,086.62

Senior Engineer  $4,144.15 $5,439.20

Senior Geographic Information System (GIS)/Database 

Administrator  $3,875.52 $5,086.62

Senior Information Technology Analyst  $3,432.55 $4,505.22

Senior Network Administrator $3,785.53 $4,968.51

2
Page 44 of 127



Position Title
Minimum          

Bi‐Weekly Pay      

Rate

Maximum         

Bi‐Weekly Pay 

Rate

Effective January 1, 2015

Senior Planner/Scheduler $3,648.47 $4,788.62

Senior Process Engineer $4,144.15 $5,439.20

Storekeeper I $2,853.67 $3,468.66

Storekeeper II $2,996.34 $3,642.08

Technical Training Program Manager $3,625.89 $4,758.98

Utility Worker $2,190.65 $2,662.75

Approved by: _________________________________ Date: ____________

                                   President, Board of Directors

Board of Directors: Directors meet or serve in their official capacity 3 – 12 times per month with a 

maximum of six paid meetings/month at a rate of $212.10 per meeting and a maximum of one meeting 

per day. 

3
Page 45 of 127



  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 

DATE: January 20, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of January 26, 2015 
 Information Item: Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of Powers 

Agreement of the East Bay Dischargers Authority 
  
Background 
 
The East Bay Dischargers Authority is a Joint Powers Authority (the “JPA”) of 
which Union Sanitary District is currently a member. The JPA was formed in 1974 
by a “Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement” (the “JPA Agreement”) entered into by 
the City of Hayward, City of San Leandro, Oro Loma Sanitary District, Union 
Sanitary District, and Castro Valley Sanitary District.  The JPA currently provides 
a transport system and outfall to collect effluent from six (6) wastewater treatment 
plants in the East Bay, including two non-member agencies. East Bay Dischargers 
Authority treats wastewater to remove chlorine and any associated toxicity and 
provides sufficient dilution so that water discharged into the San Francisco Bay 
presents no harm to water quality. 
 
The JPA Agreement has been amended three times since its creation in 1974. 
Amendments were approved in 1978, 1986, and 2007. Recently, the JPA 
Commission, consisting of one representative appointed by each member agency, 
recognized the need to once again update and revise the JPA Agreement. 
 
The JPA Commission determined that the most efficient way revise the JPA 
Agreement would be to initiate a two-step process. First, the JPA would make 
administrative changes to ensure that all policies are up to date and accurately 
reflect state law. Second, the JPA would utilize the revised documents as a starting 
point for negotiations among all the JPA agencies to determine how to best 

Page 46 of 127



structure the JPA in the future and what substantive changes might be necessary 
to accomplish these goals. 
 
The changes made in the first phase can be summarized as follows: 
 

1. Deletion of outdated references to Phase I Project Facilities, 
Reclamation/Reuse Studies, and the Water Quality Management Program 
Phase I Project Report. 

2. Update division of responsibility pertaining to the roles of controller, auditor, 
and treasurer. 

3. Update minor provisions to ensure conformity with current requirements of 
state law. 

4. Inclusion of information pertaining to the confidentiality of closed sessions. 
5. Additional editorial and conforming changes. 

 
Union Sanitary District now desires to execute the East Bay Dischargers Authority 
Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, and wishes to authorize the 
Board Chairperson and Secretary to execute the agreement on behalf of Union 
Sanitary District. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve the East Bay Dischargers Authority Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement and authorize the Board Chairperson and Secretary to execute 
the agreement on behalf of Union Sanitary District. 

 

Attachments: 

EBDA Resolution  

 

Page 47 of 127



 
RESOLUTION NO.  _________ 

  
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FOURTH AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF 

POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE EAST BAY DISCHARGERS AUTHORITY; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE BOARD CHAIRPERSON AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE THE 

FOURTH AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the East Bay Dischargers Authority is a Joint Powers Authority (the 
“JPA”) of which Union Sanitary District is currently a member; and 

 
WHEREAS, the JPA was formed in 1974 by a “Joint Exercise of Powers 

Agreement” (the “JPA Agreement”) entered into by the City of Hayward, City of San 
Leandro, Oro Loma Sanitary District, Union Sanitary District, and Castro Valley Sanitary 
District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the JPA provides a transport system and outfall to collect effluent 

from six (6) wastewater treatment plants in the East Bay and treats the collected 
wastewater to remove chlorine and any associated toxicity and provides sufficient 
dilution so that water discharged into the San Francisco Bay presents no harm to water 
quality; and 

 
WHEREAS, the JPA Agreement has been amended three times, in 1978, 1986, 

and 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, the JPA recognized the need to update and revise the JPA 

Agreement to ensure that it is current with all agency policies and state law and to 
eliminate historical references that are no longer relevant; and 

 
WHEREAS, the JPA Commission determined that the most efficient way to 

revise the JPA Agreement would be to initiate a two-step process during which the JPA 
would first make administrative changes to ensure that the JPA policies are up to date, 
and then utilize the revised documents as a starting point for negotiations among all the 
JPA agencies to determine how to best structure the JPA in the future; and 

 
WHEREAS, the partner cities and special districts and their counsel have had the 

opportunity to review and contribute to the phase one revisions; and 
 
WHEREAS, Union Sanitary District desires to execute the revised Fourth 

Amended JPA, now entitled the East Bay Dischargers Authority Fourth Amended Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Union Sanitary District Board 

hereby approves the East Bay Dischargers Authority Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement. 

 
 
1 

 

Page 48 of 127



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Union Sanitary District Board of Directors 

hereby authorizes the Board Chairperson and Secretary to execute the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority Fourth Amended Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for and on 
behalf of Union Sanitary District, subject to approval as to form by Counsel, and to take 
any other action consistent with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
  On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on January 26, 2015: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
  
 ABSTAIN: 
 
       __________________________ 
       MANNY FERNANDEZ 
       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 

Attest: 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

 
 

 
 
2 

 

Page 49 of 127



MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD 
AND THE ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT BOARD 

September 25, 2014 
 

The special joint meeting of the Board of Directors of ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER 
DISTRICT and UNION SANITARY DISTRICT was held on September 25, 2014, at the 
hour of 6:00 P.M. in the Boardroom of the Union Sanitary District Office Building, 5072 
Benson Road, Union City, California. 
 
Present:  Alameda County Water District Directors Koller, Gunther, Huang, Weed, and 

Sethy 
                Union Sanitary District Directors Handley, Kite, Lathi, Toy, and Fernandez 
 
Staff members present from Alameda County Water District: General Manager Walt 
Wadlow, Assistant General Manager–Engineering Robert Shaver, Special Assistant to the 
General Manager Eric Cartwright, Manager of Finance Shelley Burgett, Manager of 
Operations Steve Peterson, Budget & Financial Analysis Manager Michael Yee, Attorney 
Pat Miyaki, and Assistant District Secretary Andrew Warren. 
 
Staff members present from Union Sanitary District:  General Manager/District Engineer 
Rich Currie, Incoming General Manger/District Engineer Paul Eldredge, Technical 
Services Manager Sami Ghossain, and Communications Coordinator Michelle Powell. 
  
Union Sanitary District President Manny Fernandez presided. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
4 – PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS ON THIS NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING – 
None.  
 
5 – INFORMATION ITEMS 
• Agency Programs and Initiatives   

Mr. Wadlow gave a brief presentation on the California drought and ACWD’s water 
supply and conservation measures. 
Mr. Currie provided an overview of a joint project between USD and East Bay Regional 
Parks District involving habitat restoration at the Hayward Marsh. 
Mr. Currie discussed an outreach program regarding the proper disposal of fats, oils, 
and grease which can clog sanitary sewer systems.  He also highlighted a 
pharmaceutical take-back program: USD and its partners, Haller’s Pharmacy and 
Washington Township Medical Group, provide drop-off sites for expired and unused 
medications.  This allows residents to safely and responsibly dispose of expired or 
unwanted medications and keep pollutants out of water supplies. 
Mr. Currie provided information regarding a wastewater nutrient removal testing 
program currently being conducted by USD. 

Page 50 of 127



Minutes – September 25, 2014 

• Joint Water Conservation Program Update 

Mr. Cartwright presented an overview of ACWD’s water conservation efforts 
highlighting turf replacement incentives, landscape workshops, high water use 
notification, and leak detection among additional programs for residential customers.  
Mr. Cartwright went over conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and 
institutional customers as well.  
Mr. Cartwright reviewed ACWD/USD water conservation cost-share programs 
including rebates for the 1) installation of high efficiency toilets and urinals and 2) 
purchase of high efficiency clothes washers. 

• ACWD Experience with Private Lateral Insurance 

Mr. Peterson provided an update covering the two-year period since ACWD partnered 
with HomeServe, the administrator of residential service line repair insurance.  He 
noted that 184 repair claims have been completed to date and high customer 
satisfaction ratings. 

• USD’s Green Energy Program 

Mr. Ghossain made a presentation on the green energy projects USD has implemented 
including solar facility installations and a cogeneration project which produces power 
from methane produced during treatment. 

• ACWD/USD Finance Authority Update 
Mr. Yee gave a brief summary of activities since the formation of the joint ACWD/USD 
Finance Authority in 2012. 

• Overview of ACWD Investigation into Alternative Water Supply Options 
Mr. Peterson discussed the purpose and objectives of investigating alternative water 
supply options and explained the various preliminary alternatives, including partnering 
with USD on recycled water. 

• Concluding Remarks 
ACWD and USD District Board members thanked staff for the information provided at 
the workshop and encouraged additional joint workshops to take place in the future. 

_____________ 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 
8:08 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
Page 51 of 127



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 20, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
  Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
  Al D. Bunyi, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11- Meeting of January 26, 2015 
 Resolution No.  ____ Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located 

Near the Intersection of Fremont Boulevard and Landing Parkway in 
the City of Fremont 

  
Recommendation 
 
Adopt a Resolution to accept a sanitary sewer easement near Fremont Boulevard and Landing 
Parkway in the city of Fremont. 
 
Background 
 
Delta Americas is a branch of the Delta Group, a global electronic manufacturing company 
providing power and thermal management solutions.  Delta Americas is constructing their 
new headquarters at the intersection of Fremont Boulevard and Cushing Parkway.  Due to 
elevation conflicts with other utilities in Fremont Boulevard and to meet the District’s minimum 
slope, clearance, and cover requirements for gravity sewers, the lateral serving the 
headquarters building could not be connected to the sewer line directly opposite to the building, 
and had to cross the adjacent property owned by Carl, Mary Ann, and Clyde Berg.  Then, the 
lateral had to be connected to a newly constructed ten-inch diameter sewer main near the 
southeast corner of the Delta Americas property.  Since the new sewer main crosses the 
private property owned by the Bergs and will be a future connection point for this property as 
well as Delta Americas’, a sanitary sewer easement is required.  Delta Americas has secured 
the 32-foot by 15-foot wide easement from the adjacent property owners and is granting it to 
USD at no cost.  
 

Page 52 of 127



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
District staff has reviewed the legal description and plat map of the easement and recommends 
approval. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RA/ADB;ks 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 

Vicinity Map 
Location Map 
Grant of Easement 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 53 of 127



 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
ACCEPT A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT  

LOCATED NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF FREMONT BOULEVARD 
AND LANDING PARKWAY IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 

 
RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, that it 

hereby accepts the Grant Of Easement from CARL E. BERG, MARY ANN BERG AND 
CLYDE J. BERG, executed on December 18, 2013 described in the Grant of Easement 
For Sanitary Sewer Purposes and by the Legal Description attached as Exhibit A and 
plat map attached as Exhibit B.  Legal Counsel for the District is hereby authorized to 
attend to the recordation thereof. 

 
 
 
 

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on January 26, 2015: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
                      
       MANNY FERNANDEZ 
       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
      
TOM HANDLEY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 
 

Page 54 of 127



Legend

Grant of Easmnt from Carl, Mary Ann and Clyde Berg
Delta Americas

Disclaimer:
The information on this map is provided by Union Sanitary District (USD) for internal use only.
Such information is derived from multiple sources which may not be current, be outside the control of USD,
and may be of indeterminate accuracy.  The information provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date,
and any person or entity who relies on said information for any purpose whatsoever does so
solely at their own risk.

For USD use only

Site

0 400ft200

Printed: 4/28/2014 3:04:

BUILDING

BUILDING

C. BERG, M. BERG
AND C. BERG

DELTA AMERICAS

32 FEET X 15 FEET
SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT

Page 55 of 127



LOCATION MAP 
NOT TO SCALE 

Page 56 of 127



Page 57 of 127



Page 58 of 127



Page 59 of 127



Page 60 of 127



Page 61 of 127



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

DATE: January 20, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
Al D. Bunyi, Associate Engineer 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 - Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Resolution No.  Quitclaim a Sanitary Sewer Easement Located At 
47315 and 47320 Mission Falls Court in the City of Fremont 

Recommendation 

Adopt a Resolution to quitclaim an unused 15-foot wide sanitary sewer easement located at 
47315 and 47320 Mission Falls Court in the city of Fremont. 

Background 

In 1972, the Western Pacific Railroad Company granted a 15-foot wide and approximately 980-
foot long sanitary sewer easement to the District.  The easement runs along the southern 
portion of the properties addressed as 47315 and 47320 Mission Falls Court.   A vicinity map is 
attached.  No sewer lines were ever constructed within this easement. 

The owner of the property, East Warren Park, LLC, approached the District and requested that 
the District extinguish or quitclaim the unused sewer easement. Since the easement was 
granted, the general area has been developed with mainly industrial office buildings.  The two 
properties at 47315 and 47320 Mission Falls Court are currently being served by a sanitary 
sewer main located in Mission Falls Court.  Adjacent properties are also developed and are 
currently served by other existing sewer lines.  Therefore, no new sewer lines within the existing 
easement are needed to serve adjacent properties.   

The 1972 Western Pacific Railroad Grant of Easement contains a provision that stipulates the 
easement shall be extinguished if the easement ceases to be used for sanitary sewer purposes.  
Although, a sewer line was most likely intended to be constructed within the easement, the 

Page 62 of 127



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Page 2 

existing sewers in the vicinity have adequate capacity to serve the area and there appears to be 
no need for a new sewer line now or in the future.   

District staff reviewed the legal description of the easement to be quitclaimed and recommends 
approval.   

PRE/SEG/RA/ADB;ks 

Attachments: Vicinity Map 
Resolution 
Quitclaim Deed 
Legal Description and Plat Map 

Page 63 of 127



Le
g

en
d

Q
U

IT
C
LA

IM
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 E

A
S
EM

EN
T

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

D
is

cl
ai

m
er

:
Th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 t
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 U
ni

on
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

(U
S
D

) 
fo

r 
in

te
rn

al
 u

se
 o

nl
y.

S
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 d
er

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

cu
rr

en
t,

 b
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

f 
U

S
D

,
an

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
of

 in
de

te
rm

in
at

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
. 

 T
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 h
er

eo
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
ac

cu
ra

te
 o

r 
ou

t 
of

 d
at

e,
an

d 
an

y 
pe

rs
on

 o
r 

en
tit

y 
w

ho
 r

el
ie

s 
on

 s
ai

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
an

y 
pu

rp
os

e 
w

ha
ts

oe
ve

r 
do

es
 s

o
so

le
ly

 a
t 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ri
sk

.

Fo
r 

U
S

D
 u

se
 o

n
ly

S
it

e

0
30

0f
t

15
0

Pr
in

te
d:

 1
/1

5/
20

15
 8

:2
3:

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

TO
B

E
Q

U
IT

C
LA

IM
E

D

47
31

5
M

is
si

on
Fa

lls
C

ou
rt

47
32

0
M

is
si

on
Fa

lls
C

ou
rt

Page 64 of 127



 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
QUITCLAIM A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT  

LOCATED AT 47315 AND 47320 MISSION FALLS COURT  
IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 

 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, that it 
hereby quitclaims its interest in one sanitary sewer easement granted to the Union 
Sanitary District on February 23, 1972 and filed on September 1, 1972 in Book 3222 of 
Official Records of Alameda County on Pages 457 through 460 and described by the 
attached legal description and plat map.   

 
 
 
 

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on January 26, 2015: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
                      
       MANNY FERNANDEZ 
       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

       
TOM HANDLEY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

Page 65 of 127



Recording requested by 
and when recorded  
return to: 
 
EAST WARREN, LLC 
c/o John S. Wong 
President 
47289 Mission Falls Court 
Fremont, CA 94539 
 

 
Documentary Transfer Tax $0.00, consideration less than $100 (R&T Code 11911) 

This instrument is exempt from recording fees (Govt. Code 27383) 

 

 

 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
  
FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT, a public sanitary district, does hereby REMISE, RELEASE AND 
QUITCLAIM real property in the City of FREMONT, County of Alameda, State of 
CALIFORNIA, described as follows: 
 
Sanitary sewer easement granted to the Union Sanitary District on February 23, 1972 and 
recorded on September 1, 1972 as instrument 72-120647 in Book 3222 of Official Records of 
Alameda County on Pages 457 through 460. 
 
Dated this 26th day of January 2015. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
MANNY FERNANDEZ 

       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 

 
 

Page 66 of 127



 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
State of California           ) 
County of ___________  ) 
 
 
On _____________________ before me,_____________________________, 
personally appeared ________________________________________, who proved to 
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed 
the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) 
on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, 
executed the instrument.  
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
(Signature) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Page 67 of 127



Page 68 of 127



Carlson, Barbee & Gibson, Inc.

CIVIL ENGINEERS       SURVEYORS      PLANNERS

SAN RAMON, CALIFORNIA,  (925) 866-0322
2633 CAMINO RAMON, SUITE 350

Page 69 of 127



 

 Directors 
 Manny Fernandez 
 Tom Handley 
 Pat Kite  
 Anjali Lathi 
 Jennifer Toy 
 
 Officers 
 Paul R. Eldredge 
 General Manager / 
 District Engineer 
 
 David M. O'Hara 
 Attorney 

 
DATE: January 19, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Chris Elliott, Associate Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 – Meeting of January 26, 2015 
 Resolution No. _____, Quitclaim a 15-Foot Wide Sanitary Sewer 

Easement at 5347, 5335, 5323, and 5311 Jarvis Avenue in the City of 
Newark 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board quitclaim a 15-foot wide sanitary sewer easement by 
resolution. 
 
Background 
 
The District currently has an existing 15-foot wide sanitary sewer easement located at 
5347, 5335, 5323, and 5311 Jarvis Avenue in the city of Newark.  Please see the 
attached location map.  As part of the Jarvis Avenue Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project, 
which was recently accepted by the Board on November 24, 2014, the 10-inch sanitary 
sewer and manhole lying within this easement were abandoned in place and replaced 
with a new 10-inch sanitary sewer and manholes, relocated to the Jarvis Avenue public 
right-of-way.  As such, the District no longer has any use for this sanitary sewer 
easement. 
 
Staff has reviewed the legal description of the easement and recommends the Board 
quitclaim the easement by resolution.  
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/CE;ks 
 
 
Attachments: Location Map 
   Resolution 
   Quitclaim Deed 

Page 70 of 127



LOCATION MAP
QUITCLAIM OF TRACT 7285 SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT

NEW SANITARY SEWER 
AND MANHOLES 

15-FOOT WIDE SANITARY SEWER 
EASEMENT TO BE QUITCLAIMED 

Page 71 of 127



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

QUITCLAIM A 15 FOOT WIDE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT  
LOCATED AT 5347, 5335, 5323, AND 5311 JARVIS AVENUE  

IN THE CITY OF NEWARK 
 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, that it 
hereby quitclaims its interest in one sanitary sewer easement granted to the Union 
Sanitary District on September 23, 2004 and filed on September 29, 2005 in Book 285 
of Official Records of Alameda County on Pages 62 through 63 and described by the 
attached quitclaim deed, legal description, and plat map.   

 
 
 
 

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on January 26, 2015: 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 
 
                      
       MANNY FERNANDEZ 
       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
      
TOM HANDLEY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 

Page 72 of 127



Recording requested by 
and when recorded  
return to: 
 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
c/o David M. O’Hara, 
Attorney at Law 
975 Centennial Drive 
Brentwood, CA 94513 
 

 
Documentary Transfer Tax $0.00, consideration less than $100 (R&T Code 11911) 

This instrument is exempt from recording fees (Govt. Code 27383) 

 
 
 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
  
FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT, a public sanitary district, does hereby REMISE, RELEASE AND 
QUITCLAIM real property in the City of NEWARK, County of Alameda, State of 
CALIFORNIA, described as follows: 
 
A sanitary sewer easement fifteen feet in width granted to the Union Sanitary District by Tract 
Map 7285, recorded on September 29, 2005 in Book 285, pages 62 and 63 of the Official 
Records of Alameda County, more particularly described in Exhibit A and portrayed graphically 
in Exhibit B hereto. 
 
Dated this 26th day of January 2015. 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Manny Fernandez 

       President, Board of Directors 
       Union Sanitary District 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 73 of 127



Page 74 of 127



Page 75 of 127



Page 76 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156416 1/15/2015 20141120.2

156308 1/8/2015 11230717

1/8/2015 11230723

1/8/2015 11230848

156404 1/15/2015 19113

1/15/2015 19107

156348 1/8/2015 11790

156347 1/8/2015 19039

1/8/2015 19046

1/8/2015 19017

156366

156407

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

800424.4

3015311

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

SWRCB - STATE WATER RESOURCES

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

ROTO-JET OF AMERICA CO INC

RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT

ANDERSON PACIFIC ENG CONST INC

SAN FRANCISCO ESTUARY INST

Description

SRF LOAN #C065085110 • NEWARK PS

PLANT GROUNDWATER WELLS MONITORING

ODOR CONTROL STUDY UPDATE

UPPER HETCH HECTCHY SS REHABILITATION

IRVINGTON BASIN SEWER MASTER PLAN UPDATE

ALVARADO TREATMENT PLANT SITE USE STUDY

1 MILD-STEEL CABINET-STYLE PARTS WASHER

OLD ALAMEDA CREEK NPDES PERMIT RENEWAL

LOCAL LIMITS & WASTEWATER TREATABILITY

HAYWARD MARSH REHABILITATION OPTIONS

PLANT FACILITIES IMPRVMT - HYPO TANK A&B

ANNUAL PARTICIPANT FEE FOR RMP 2015

Pagel of 12

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$685,404.62 $685,404.62

$826.09 $47,401.91

$12,789.75

S33.786.07

$12,341.00 $37,706.18

$25,365.18

$37,353.97 $37,353.97

$1,557.68 $22,132.06

$1,846.50

$18,727.88

$18,783.12 $18,783.12

$17,389.00 $17,389.00

Page 77 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156398 1/15/2015 898220150102

1/15/2015 761520141229

1/15/2015 666720150102

1/15/2015 892820150102

1/15/2015 096020150102

1/15/2015 013720150106

1/15/2015 140120150106

1/15/2015 224720141223

156323 1/8/2015 901984471

156320 1/8/2015 1027986C

1/8/2015 1027986A

156340 1/8/2015 24835730

1/8/2015 24836107

156380 1/15/2015 55634

156421 1/15/2015 533620141222

156422 1/15/2015 15074

156341 1/8/2015 103029

156402 1/15/2015 140307

156346 1/8/2015 257062

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

DELTA DENTAL SERVICE

MOTION INDUSTRIES INC

EQUIPCO SALES & SERVICE

US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM

V&A CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC

MUNIQUIP. LLC

RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS

RKI INSTRUMENTS INC

Description

SERV TO 01/01/15 FREMONT PS

SERV TO 12/26/14 NEWARK PS

SERV TO 01/01/15 PASEO PADRE PS

SERV TO 01/01/15 HAYWARD MARSH

SERV TO 01/01/15 CATHODIC PROJECT

SERV TO 01/05/15 BOYCE RD PS

SERV TO 01/04/15 IRVINGTON PS

SERV TO 12/22/14 CS TRAINING TRAILER

3.110 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

DECEMBER 2014 DENTAL

DECEMBER 2014 DENTAL

1 EA APS DIVERSION GATE CYLINDER

4 EA VALVES

1 GEMS DIG GAS ANALYZER

MONTHLY CAL-CARD STMT - DEC 2014

NPS CORROSION INVESTIGATION

ASTD PUMP 1 OVERHAUL PARTS - ALVARADO PS

SSC COST OF SERVICE STUDY

18 PERSONAL GAS DETECTORS - FMC

Page 2 of 12

Invoice Amt

$201.81

$15,155.19

$168.21

$47.44

$40.54

$1,694.15

$26.60

$50.30

$14,439.11

$12,556.77

$1,607.27

$13,689.88

$370.06

$11,907.63

$11,278.40

$11,229.68

$10,952.26

$10,874.00

$10,284.92

Check Amt

$17,384.24

$14,439.11

$14,164.04

$14,059.94

$11,907.63

$11,278.40

$11,229.68

$10,952.26

$10,874.00

$10,284.92

Page 78 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156333 1/8/2015 9017425914

1/8/2015 9017425198

156378 1/15/2015 13668

156419 1/15/2015 660219

1/15/2015 660398

1/15/2015 659956

1/15/2015 660506

156377 1/15/2015 22530

156337 1/8/2015 37432220150101

156389 1/15/2015 10911457

156336 1/8/2015 76243

1/8/2015 76221

156408 1/15/2015 445.1

156344 1/8/2015 933438

156388 1/15/2015 9017426837

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS. INC.

EEC ENVIRONMENTAL INC

UNIVAR USA INC

DOUGLAS PRODUCTS AND PACKAGING

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP

KRONOS INC

KOFFLER ELECTRICAL MAR INC

SCHEIDEGGER & ASSOCIATES

POLYDYNEINC

KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS. INC.

Description

7.52 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

7.78 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

CWT & PRETREATMENT PROGRAM ASSISTANCE

4,991 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,052 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,052 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

5,011 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

24 SAMAFOAM VAPOROOTER II. GALLON

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - JAN 2015

TIMEKEEPING SYSTEM - PROJECT MGMT FEES

1 EA HEADWORKS SUPPLY FAN MOTOR

2 EA BARSCREEN BRAKE ASSY

STEVENSON COMMUNICATION TOWER PROJECT

41.400 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-539

8.21 DRY TONS FERROUS CHLORIDE

Page 3 of 12

Invoice Amt

$4,918.08

$5,088.12

$9,475.76

$2,306.84

$2,335.03

$2,335.03

$2,316.07

$7,907.05

$7,403.79

$6,570.00

$522.32

$5,314.81

$5,566.16

S5.439.96

$5,369.34

Check Amt

$10,006.20

$9,475.76

$9,292.97

$7,907.05

S7.403.79

$6,570.00

$5,837.13

$5,566.16

$5,439.96

$5,369.34

Page 79 of 127



Check No. Date

156316 1/8/2015

1/8/2015

1/8/2015

1/8/2015

1/8/2015

1/8/2015

1/8/2015

156355 1/8/2015

1/8/2015

156417 1/15/2015

156300 1/8/2015

156410 1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

156353 1/8/2015

156358 1/8/2015

156370 1/15/2015

156399 1/15/2015

156363 1/15/2015

Invoice No.

252276

252361

252420

252248

252400

252411

252332

658920

659032

130727

62915

16717

16885

16829

6035

20150101

7266

7211

11288

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

CURTIS 4 TOMPKINS LTD

UNIVAR USA INC

TOTAL WASTE SYSTEMS INC

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

SERVICEWRKX

THORNTON ENVIRONMENTAL CONST

VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA

CATELLUS DEVELOPMENT CORP

PAYASO RESTAURANT

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Description

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

10 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

5 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

8 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

42 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

5,054 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

4.765 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

DECEMBER 2014 GRIT DISPOSAL

10 PIPEPATCH KIT - WINTER

BLDG 81 MAINTENANCE - SEPTEMBER 2014

BLDG 81 MAINTENANCE • NOVEMBER 2014

QUARTERLY MAINTENANCE & MONTHLY FILTERS

ANNUAL TANK MONITOR CERTIFICATION SERVICE

JANUARY 2015 VISION STMT

REFUND # 17734

REFUND #17739

COST SHARE HET/HEU REBATE PROGRAM

Page 4 of 12

Invoice Amt

$120.00

$1,522.50

$761.25

$80.00

$1,905.00

$120.00

$60.00

$2,335.95

$2,202.39

$4,281.95

$3,772.69

$308.64

$306.64

$2,992.63

$3,350.00

$3,341.31

$3,312.50

$3,300.00

$3,229.89

Check Amt

$4,568.75

$4,538.34

$4,281.95

$3,772.69

$3,605.91

$3,350.00

$3,341.31

$3,312.50

$3,300.00

$3,229.89

Page 80 of 127



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

156396 1/15/2015 52203810 NEOPOST INC

1/15/2015 52203811

1/15/2015 52203813

1/15/2015 52203818

156343 1/8/2015 141353 PACIFIC COAST CHEMICALS CO

156395 1/15/2015 1214000078 NBS

156423 1/15/2015 31044 VALLEY WINDOW CLEANING

156314 1/8/2015 14727 COHEN GROUP

156394 1/15/2015 96956 MUNICIPAL MAINT EQUIPMENT INC

156332 1/8/2015 601422791 HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

156403 1/15/2015 916002298855 REPUBLIC SERVICES #916

1/15/2015 916002286911

156405 1/15/2015 1114462 ROYAL TRUCK BODY

Description

NEOPOST WJS10 MAINTENANCE

NEOPOST MAINTENANCE WJ150

NEOPOST RATE CHANGE PROTECTION

NEOPOST METER RENTAL

440 GALS CAPTOR CALCIUM THIOSULFATE

SEWER SERVICE CHARGE DATA SERV JAN- MAR 2015

WINDOW CLEANING SERVICES

INDUSTRIAL HYGIENIST INVESTIGATION • BOYCE LS

1 EA TURBINE CHAIN SCRAPER BODY

1 EA CARPET CLEANER

ROLL OFF ON CALL - DECEMBER 2014

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - DECEMBER 2014

INSTALL BACK-UP CAMERA & FLASHERS T1371

Page 5 of 12

Invoice Amt

$900.00

$742.50

$283.17

$1,247.40

$2,963.07

$2,795.73

$2,792.00

$2,637.50

$2,370.20

$2,304.59

$220.32

$1,977.27

$1,885.60

Check Amt

$3,173.07

$2,963.07

$2,795.73

$2,792.00

$2,637.50

$2,370.20

$2,304.59

$2,197.59

$1,885.60

Page 81 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

156383 1/15/2015 9610971179 GRAINGER INC

1/15/2015 9610971161

1/15/2015 9613478164

1/15/2015 9609811188

1/15/2015 9609811170

1/15/2015 9609348835

1/15/2015 9614472760

1/15/2015 9609942595

1/15/2015 9613296939

1/15/2015 9612693623

1/15/2015 9609994877

156361 1/15/2015 1031129 ACCUVANT INC

156307 1/8/2015 10466840 BLAISDELL'S

1/8/2015 10522690

1/8/2015 10512591

1/8/2015 10522110

1/8/2015 10500760

1/8/2015 10517380

156374 1/15/2015 818732 CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Description

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

1 EA JACK. TRAILER, 2000 LB

CREDIT FOR 1 EA JACK. TRAILER. 2000 LB

1 EA HOOKUP WIRE

MECHANICAL FLOAT SWITCH

1 EA THERMOCOUPLE LEAD WIRE

2 EA HYDROCHLORIC ACID

2 EA HOSE REELS

1 EA HOSE REEL

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 EA PILOT LIGHTS

IT SECURITY TRAINING

2 CHAIRS - P. ELDREDGE & R. MCEVOY

ASTD BREAKROOM SUPPLIES

1 DLY DIARY

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

ASTD GEN 5 & 6 COLLANT TUBES AND GASKETS

Page 6 of 12

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$31.79 $1,709.04

$72.28

$-72.28

$91.40

S77.86

$82.51

$26.92

$595.51

$297.75

$113.44

$391.86

$1,500.00 $1,500.00

$735.76 $1,318.06

$213.53

$19.00

$57.19

$10.16

$282.42

$1,315.55 $1,315.55

Page 82 of 127



Check No. Date

156411 1/15/2015

1/15/2015

156397 1/15/2015

1/15/2015

156330 1/8/2015

156367 1/15/2015

1/15/2015

156392 1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

1/15/2015

156382 1/15/2015

Invoice No.

4868173010115

8122768010115

41964283

42015101

9163840

7219.2

7219

20003806

20239964

19568701

19494666

20296377

19631430

19583861

19494667

20660656

20239965

19651898

20150114

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

SIERRA SPRING WATER COMPANY

Description

WATER SERVICE 12/05/14 - 01/01/15

BOTTLESS COOLERS RENTAL

TEMP LABOR-BLANCHETTE, V., WKEND 12/12/14

TEMP LABOR-BLANCHETTE, V., WKEND 12/19/14

1 EA DIGITAL PH SENSOR FOR CHERRY ST PS

REFUND #17195

REFUND* 17194

1 EA ADJUSTABLE WRENCH

30 PACKS ASTD SCREWS

1 EA CULTIVATING/REFUSE HOOK

3 EA STAINLES STEEL SPLIT RINGS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

2 EA GREASE GUNS

1 PACK ENGRAVING PLATE

2 EA SEALED LEAD-ACID BATTERIES

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

7 PACKS LABEL INSERT KEY TAGS

TRAVEL REIMB: CAPPO CONF - LODGING/MEALS/MILEAGE

OFFICE TEAM

HACH COMPANY

BEYOND PLUMBING

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

ROSLYN FULLER

Page 7 of 12

Invoice Amt Check Amt

S926.76 S1.165.76

$239.00

$190.50 $1,104.90

$914.40

$1,047.93 $1,047.93

$500.00 $1,000.00

$500.00

$21.90 $986.78

$208.91

$39.09

$17.49

$108.88

$310.53

$55.80

S22.27

$63.93

$84.53

$53.45

$971.24 $971.24

Page 83 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No,

156349 1/8/2015 2523077001

156413 1/15/2015 3252526250

1/15/2015 3252526242

1/15/2015 3252526233

156312 1/8/2015 44077424

156418 1/15/2015 5626

156414 1/15/2015 6906

156304 1/8/2015 88058

156342 1/8/2015 20141231

156339 1/8/2015 19324597

1/8/2015 20124731

1/8/2015 20124732

156406 1/15/2015 2531682001

156359 1/8/2015 32941

1/8/2015 32984

156400 1/15/2015 20150109

156322 1/8/2015 8526

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL

CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION

TURNER RISK CONSULTING INC

STAR ROOTER AND PLUMBING

ATS ELECTRO LUBE INC

NAPA AUTO PARTS

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC

S & S SUPPLIES & SOLUTIONS

WECO INDUSTRIES LLC

PETTY CASH

EAST BAY MUNI UTILITY DISTRICT

Description

75 MASTER LOCK LASER ENGRAVED GREEN

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES • INVENTORY

3 BXS EQUAL SWEETENER

ASTD BREAKROOM & OFFICE SUPPLIES - INVENTORY

INSPECTION. SEMI ANNUAL ALARM SYSTEM

FORK LIFT OPERATOR & TRAIN THE TRAINER - BOWMAN

REFUND #17748

2AUTOLUBERS

MONTHL AUTO PARTS STMT • DEC 2014

2 EA WING NUT EXPANSION PLUGS

2 EA GARDEN HOSE REELS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD SAFETY SUPPLIES

REPAIR CAMERA TRENCHLESS TRUCK T2355

REPAIR CAMERA TRENCHLESS TRUCK T2355

PETTY CASH REPLENISHMENT

6 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

Page 8 of 12

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$963.33 $963.33

$368.71 $949.81

$56.61

$524.49

$908.00 $908.00

$850.00 $850.00

$800.00 $800.00

$673.58 $673.58

$663.32 $663.32

$30.40 $612.41

$432.58

$149.43

$603.24 $603.24

$777.01 $593.44

$-183.57

$571.27 $571.27

$543.00 $543.00

Page 84 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156331 1/8/2015 3H9760

1/8/2015 3H9636

1/8/2015 3H9718

156324 1/8/2015 1111111

156335 1/8/2015 7649

156362 1/15/2015 6024

156384 1/15/2015 256261

156369 1/15/2015 2029022

156334 1/8/2015 1285

156393 1/15/2015 649237

156415 1/15/2015 12312014

156313 1/8/2015 47124

156391 1/15/2015 96698

156357 1/8/2015 9737524593

156352 1/672015 20150105

156306 1/8/2015 2855

156315 1/8/2015 816447

156364 1/15/2015 5109450

156368 1/15/2015 10527080

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS

FASTENAL

KING TRENCHLESS

SHAGUETA N & AFAQUE AHMED

HANIGAN COMPANY INC

CALIFORNIA SURVEYING DRAFTING

KEN GRADY CO INC

MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION

CITYLEAF INC

MCINERNEY & DILLON. P.C.

VERIZON WIRELESS

STANLEY R CHERRY TRUST

BAY POWER LLC

CUMMINS PACIFIC LLC

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

BLAISDELL'S

Description

6 EA BUSHINGS

2 EA VALV BALL TUBV S/T PVC VIT PTFE

ASTD PVC FITTINGS & PIPE

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

REFUND #17712

REFUND #17346

5000 USD #10 ENVELOPES

CIP COLOR PRINTER REPAIR

1 EA PASEO PADRE 02 SENSOR

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - JAN 2015

STORAGE TANK MAINT FEE 2014

PLANT MAINTENANCE • NOV 2014

LEGAL SERVICES: OMP/I&G CREEKSIDE INVESTORS

WIRELESS SERV 11/21/14-12/20/14

REFUND OF DISTRICT FEES/CHARGES

GEN OIL FILTERS

ASTD GEN 5 & 6 COLLANT TUBES AND GASKETS

2 EMRGENCY LIGHTS

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES

Page 9 of 12

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$42.62 $538.86

$202.09

$294.15

$522.62 $522.62

$500.00 $500.00

$500.00 $500.00

$480.41 $480.41

$477.14 $477.14

$469.84 $469.84

$467.57 $467.57

$437.02 $437.02

$429.65 $429.65

$420.00 $420.00

$399.82 $399.82

$355.97 $355.97

$321.82 $321.82

$300.69 $300.69

$296.09 $296.09

$292.88 $292.88

Page 85 of 127



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No. Vendor

156305 1/8/2015 72247 BAILEY FENCE CO INC

156309 1/8/2015 20150105 ALBUNYI

156311 1/8/2015 396658 CHEMETRICS INC

156373 1/15/2015 44077480 CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION

156420 1/15/2015 9853514 UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

156381 1/15/2015 901987486 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

156412 1/15/2015 20150101 SPOK INC

156360 1/8/2015 47774 WEST COAST COMPRESSOR

156401 1/15/2015 20150105 PIPE USERS GROUP

156365 1/15/2015 1727836 ANALYSTS INC

156376 1/15/2015 20150113 RICHARD CZAPKAY

156310 1/8/2015 275052 CENTERVILLE LOCKSMITH

1/8/2015 275456

1/8/2015 274182

156354 1/8/2015 1287807 TOTAL FILTRATION SERVICES INC

156327 1/8/2015 1841069628 GOODYEAR COMM TIRE & SERV C

156351 1/8/2015 20150108 JENNIFER SIO-KWOK

156375 1/15/2015 252448 CURTIS & TOMPKINS LTD

156328 1/8/2015 76580 GORILLA METALS

Description

REPAIR BARB WIRE FENCELINE • PARKING LOT

REIMB: ASCE ANNUAL DUES

10 PKS PLANT SAMPLING CHEMICALS

INSPECTION.QTRLY.SPRINKLER SYSTEM WET TYPE

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 12/20/14

Dl WATER SYSTEM

JANUARY 2015 PAGER SERVICE

2 FILTER ELEMENTS

2015 ANNUAL SEMINAR: BAILE & ELLIOTT

9 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

EXP REIMB: CWEA GRADE 3 CERTIFICATION

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

ASTD KEYS

ASTD KEYS

7 FILTER OIL ELEMENTS

2 EA TIRES

EXP REIMB: LUNCH MANAGEMENT MEETING

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS

ASTD METAL, STEEL. STAINLESS, AND ALUMINUM

Page 10 of12

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$291.00 $291.00

$265.00 $265.00

$262.73 $262.73

$250.00 $250.00

$245.55 $245.55

$227.00 $227.00

$217.19 $217.19

$212.44 $212.44

$200.00 $200.00

$198.90 $198.90

$180.00 $180.00

$35.65 $162.78

$32.59

$94.54

$158.81 $158.81

$135.36 $135.36

$124.86 $124.86

$120.00 $120.00

$118.82 $118.82

Page 86 of 127



Check No. Date Invoice No.

156350 1/8/2015 849028541

156325 1/8/2015 206405

156318 1/8/2015 20141225.10

156356 1/8/2015 9853504

156390 1/15/2015 20150113

156371 1/15/2015 439779

156345 1/872015 69950

156338 1/8/2015 20141218

156385 1/15/2015 601432362

156302 1/8/2015 1294

1/8/2015 1298

156317 1/8/2015 20150106

156329 1/872015 9602043466

156409 1/15/2015 20150114

156386 1/15/2015 997720141228

156424 1/15/2015 30533

156379 1/15/2015 1000366533

156301 1/672015 9034401095

156321 1/872015 615320141218

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Vendor

SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS

FERGUSON WELDING SERVICE INC

DALE HARDWARE INC

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

KATHLEEN MARTIN

CENTERVILLE SAW AND TOOL

REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INTL

DUNG LU

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO

ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER

CWEA-NRTC

GRAINGER INC

JAMES SCHOFIELD

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

VOX NETWORK SOLUTIONS INC

ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS

AIRGAS NCN

DISH NETWORK

Description

MTHLY MAINTENANCE BASED ON USE

REPAIR PORTABLE EYEWASH VESSEL

12/14 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 12/13/14

EXP REIMB: MILEAGE & PARKING FOR CAPPO LUNCHEON

REPAIR PRIMER BULB

IRIDIUM SVC FEE JANUARY 2015

EXP REIMB: LITHIUM CORDLESS COMBO KIT

ASTD JANITORIAL SUPPLIES

24 ASSESSOR'S MAPS

6 ASSESSOR'S MAPS

CERT RENEWAL: J. SEO

1 EA LINEAR EMERGENCY BALLAST

EXP REIMB: POST MEETING LUNCH CV LATERAL GRANT PROGRAM

MONTHLY HARDWARE STMT - DEC 2014

ADDED NEW AREA CODE

1 MANGANESE STANDARD FOR ICP

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

JAN 2015 - SERVICE FEE

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$115.71 $115.71

$115.00 $115.00

$112.00 $112.00

$110.68 $110.68

$108.32 $108.32

$104.68 $104.68

$97.90 $97.90

$97.01 $97.01

$95.49 $95.49

$72.00 $90.00

$18.00

$89.00 $89.00

$82.44 $82.44

$68.27 $68.27

$68.10 $68.10

$60.00 $60.00

$54.10 $54.10

$53.03 $53.03

$45.85 $45.85

Page 11 of 12Page 87 of 127



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

1/03/2015-1/16/2015

Check No. Date Invoice No.

156319 1/8/2015 XJM3W87F9

Vendor

DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA

156303 1/8/2015

156372 1/15/2015 397009

156326 1/8/2015 144324

1/8/2015

4088644120141223 ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

CHEMETRICS INC

FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC

144413

156387 1/15/2015 5506469

Invoices:

Credit Memos: 2

$0-$1,000: 133

$1,000 -$10,000: 42

$10,000-$100,000: 18

Over $100,000: 1

Total: 196

HOSE & FITTINGS ETC

-255.85

35,717.13

139,435.29

298,903.81

685,404.62

1,159,205.00

Description

1 DELL TABLET CASE

SERV TO: 12/22/14 - BOYCE ROAD

1 FORMALDEHYDE REFILL AMPOULES

1 RUBBER STAMP - F. COUTO

2 REPLACEMENT INK PADS

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS

Checks:

Invoice Amt Check Amt

$43.78 $43.78

$43.45 $43.45

$35.71 $35.71

$12.60 $34.66

$22.08

$14.21 $14.21

$0-$1,000: 72 24,009.63

$1,000-$10,000: 35 132,444.09

$10,000 - $100,000: 17 317,346.66

Over $100,000: 1 685,404.62

Total: 125 1,159,205.00

Page 12 of 12Page 88 of 127



 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E 
General Manager/District 
Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
 
 
DATE: January 20, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent 
  Kim Truong, Administrative Specialist II 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14b. – January 26, 2015 
  Information item:  CAL-CARD QUARTERLY MERCHANT  

ACTIVITY REPORT 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Information Only 
 
Information 
 
The attached CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL-Card activity 
for the second quarter of FY 2015.  This covers transactions for the CAL-Card 
billing period September 23, 2014 through December 22, 2014. During this 
quarter, we had 258 transactions totaling $66,789.94. 
  
 

Page 89 of 127



State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 BUSINESS 8398 CA WATER ENV 510-382-7800 CA $ 5,776.93 42 $ 137.55 $ 0.00 0 $ 5,776.93 9.05% 42 $ 6.93

EXPENS ASSN

217413 Prohibited Tran 5719 ATGSTORES.COM 425-814-2515 WA 5,711.34 1 5,711.34 0.00 0 5,711.34 8.94% 1 0.00

47963 BUSINESS 8299 AMERICAN 877-9787246 CO 2,970.00 1 2,970.00 0.00 0 2,970.00 4.65% 1 0.00

EXPENS TRAINCO

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 HANNA RUBBER 816-888-7341 MO 2,737.80 3 912.60 0.00 0 2,737.80 4.29% 3 0.00

TRADE CO.

137510 Rialto 9399 CITY OF FREMONT 510-494-4790 CA 2,667.00 2 1,333.50 0.00 0 2,667.00 4.18% 2 0.00

DEV SVCS

137510 Rialto 9399 CITY OF FREMONT FREMONT CA 2,028.00 2 1,014.00 0.00 0 2,028.00 3.18% 2 0.00

DEV SVCS

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS.COM 9300 800-349-4358 IA 1,823.67 5 364.73 0.00 0 1,823.67 2.86% 5 155.93

TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5099 BRADY BRADYCORP.COM WI 1,445.89 2 722.95 0.00 0 1,445.89 2.26% 2 0.00

TRADE WORLDWIDE INC.

47972 OTHER 5999 CONFINEDSPACE.C 510-337-8880 CA 1,445.40 1 1,445.40 0.00 0 1,445.40 2.26% 1 0.00

OM

47979 WHOLESALE 5074 FRAN A. OLSEN 925-961-8888 CA 1,313.14 2 656.57 0.00 0 1,313.14 2.06% 2 0.00

TRADE

47972 OTHER 7299 ELEMENTAL 859-2545115 KY 1,260.00 3 420.00 0.00 0 1,260.00 1.97% 3 0.00

ANALYSIS INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 CALIFORNIA 510-782-1000 CA 1,008.50 2 504.25 0.00 0 1,008.50 1.58% 2 87.50

TRADE SERVICE TOOL

47972 OTHER 5732 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 988.00 2 494.00 0.00 0 988.00 1.55% 2 0.00

*TMDISTRIBUT

47979 WHOLESALE 5099 EMEDCO 800-442-3633 NY 948.92 2 474.46 0.00 0 948.92 1.49% 2 0.00

TRADE

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5965 SUMMIT RACING 800-230-3030 OH 945.76 1 945.76 0.00 0 945.76 1.48% 1 0.00

E MAIL ORDER

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 FISCHER PUMP & LOVELAND OH 897.49 1 897.49 0.00 0 897.49 1.41% 1 0.00

TRADE VALVE

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 SOL*SNAP-ON 877-740-1900 GA 867.09 3 289.03 0.00 0 867.09 1.36% 3 75.22

TRADE INDUSTRIAL

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON AMZN.COM/BILL WA 1,120.30 13 86.18 261.23 1 859.07 1.35% 14 52.48

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     1

Page 90 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=28788776&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=510-382-7800&MNM=CA%20WATER%20ENV%20ASSN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=28788776&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=510-382-7800&MNM=CA%20WATER%20ENV%20ASSN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=37415855&MCC=5719&MST=WA&MCITY=425-814-2515&MNM=ATGSTORES.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=59946900&MCC=8299&MST=CO&MCITY=877-9787246&MNM=AMERICAN%20TRAINCO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=59946900&MCC=8299&MST=CO&MCITY=877-9787246&MNM=AMERICAN%20TRAINCO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=49616196&MCC=5085&MST=MO&MCITY=816-888-7341&MNM=HANNA%20RUBBER%20CO.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=49616196&MCC=5085&MST=MO&MCITY=816-888-7341&MNM=HANNA%20RUBBER%20CO.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43478302&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=510-494-4790&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43478302&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=510-494-4790&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43294948&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43294948&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39613539&MCC=5311&MST=IA&MCITY=800-349-4358&MNM=SEARS.COM%209300
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57885594&MCC=5099&MST=WI&MCITY=BRADYCORP.COM&MNM=BRADY%20WORLDWIDE%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57885594&MCC=5099&MST=WI&MCITY=BRADYCORP.COM&MNM=BRADY%20WORLDWIDE%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30884768&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-337-8880&MNM=CONFINEDSPACE.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30884768&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-337-8880&MNM=CONFINEDSPACE.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57376398&MCC=5074&MST=CA&MCITY=925-961-8888&MNM=FRAN%20A.%20OLSEN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=40757954&MCC=7299&MST=KY&MCITY=859-2545115&MNM=ELEMENTAL%20ANALYSIS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=40757954&MCC=7299&MST=KY&MCITY=859-2545115&MNM=ELEMENTAL%20ANALYSIS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=52101584&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=510-782-1000&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SERVICE%20TOOL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=52101584&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=510-782-1000&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SERVICE%20TOOL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=7702688&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*TMDISTRIBUT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=7702688&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*TMDISTRIBUT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=36745954&MCC=5099&MST=NY&MCITY=800-442-3633&MNM=EMEDCO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=8739813&MCC=5965&MST=OH&MCITY=800-230-3030&MNM=SUMMIT%20RACING%20MAIL%20ORDER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=8739813&MCC=5965&MST=OH&MCITY=800-230-3030&MNM=SUMMIT%20RACING%20MAIL%20ORDER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26466035&MCC=5085&MST=OH&MCITY=LOVELAND&MNM=FISCHER%20PUMP%20%26%20VALVE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26466035&MCC=5085&MST=OH&MCITY=LOVELAND&MNM=FISCHER%20PUMP%20%26%20VALVE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33296368&MCC=5251&MST=GA&MCITY=877-740-1900&MNM=SOL*SNAP-ON%20INDUSTRIAL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33296368&MCC=5251&MST=GA&MCITY=877-740-1900&MNM=SOL*SNAP-ON%20INDUSTRIAL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25835489&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS

212656 SCCLD AUTO 7549 SAN LEANDRO 510-4834047 CA 850.00 1 850.00 0.00 0 850.00 1.33% 1 0.00

TOWING

47972 OTHER 5999 EQUIPCO RENTALS 888-234-5678 CA 816.48 1 816.48 0.00 0 816.48 1.28% 1 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 JM SQUARED 925-7982500 CA 778.74 1 778.74 0.00 0 778.74 1.22% 1 0.00

TRADE ASSOCIATES INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS ROEBUCK   HAYWARD CA 741.69 1 741.69 0.00 0 741.69 1.16% 1 0.00

TRADE 1248

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 HACH COMPANY 9706631377 CO 726.06 1 726.06 0.00 0 726.06 1.14% 1 0.00

TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 ECOM AMERICA, GAINESVILLE GA 725.53 2 362.77 0.00 0 725.53 1.14% 2 0.00

TRADE LTD.

212656 SCCLD AUTO 7549 BERRY BROTHERS 510-465-7215 CA 630.00 1 630.00 0.00 0 630.00 0.99% 1 0.00

TOWING

47973 OTHER TRAVEL 4468 GO2MARINE 206-780-5670 WA 622.67 1 622.67 0.00 0 622.67 0.98% 1 0.00

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 THE HOME DEPOT UNION CITY CA 573.31 4 143.33 0.00 0 573.31 0.90% 4 49.74

635

47962 BUILDING 1799 CLASSIC GRAPHICS 510-744-2190 CA 572.25 1 572.25 0.00 0 572.25 0.90% 1 0.00

SERVIC

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS.COM 9300 WEST DES MOIN IA 571.67 1 571.67 0.00 0 571.67 0.90% 1 0.00

TRADE

150085 MCC5969 5969 LABOR 507-663-1220 MN 550.00 2 275.00 0.00 0 550.00 0.86% 2 0.00

ARBITRATION INST

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 538.20 1 538.20 0.00 0 538.20 0.84% 1 0.00

5262456066736

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 DWYER 219-8798868 IN 531.18 2 265.59 0.00 0 531.18 0.83% 2 44.37

TRADE INSTRUMENTS INC

47963 BUSINESS 8398 CALIFORNIA 916-4460388 CA 500.00 1 500.00 0.00 0 500.00 0.78% 1 0.00

EXPENS ASSOC OF SAN

47972 OTHER 5999 ART.COM/ALLPOST 888-654-0143 CA 498.18 1 498.18 0.00 0 498.18 0.78% 1 0.00

ERS.COM

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 TIFCO INDUSTRIES 281-5716000 TX 497.55 1 497.55 0.00 0 497.55 0.78% 1 32.81

TRADE INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5199 AIRSCENT ALPHA 412-252-7000 PA 489.92 1 489.92 0.00 0 489.92 0.77% 1 24.50

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     2

Page 91 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25835489&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12146730&MCC=7549&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4834047&MNM=SAN%20LEANDRO%20TOWING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12146730&MCC=7549&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4834047&MNM=SAN%20LEANDRO%20TOWING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30825600&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=888-234-5678&MNM=EQUIPCO%20RENTALS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11477196&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=925-7982500&MNM=JM%20SQUARED%20ASSOCIATES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11477196&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=925-7982500&MNM=JM%20SQUARED%20ASSOCIATES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=331294&MCC=5311&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=SEARS%20ROEBUCK%20%20%201248
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=331294&MCC=5311&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=SEARS%20ROEBUCK%20%20%201248
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=23968536&MCC=5085&MST=CO&MCITY=9706631377&MNM=HACH%20COMPANY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43328365&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=GAINESVILLE&MNM=ECOM%20AMERICA,%20LTD.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43328365&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=GAINESVILLE&MNM=ECOM%20AMERICA,%20LTD.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=48424274&MCC=7549&MST=CA&MCITY=510-465-7215&MNM=BERRY%20BROTHERS%20TOWING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=48424274&MCC=7549&MST=CA&MCITY=510-465-7215&MNM=BERRY%20BROTHERS%20TOWING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34244110&MCC=4468&MST=WA&MCITY=206-780-5670&MNM=GO2MARINE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=339175&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20635
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=339175&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20635
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32192878&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=510-744-2190&MNM=CLASSIC%20GRAPHICS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=62537695&MCC=5311&MST=IA&MCITY=WEST%20DES%20MOIN&MNM=SEARS.COM%209300
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30493006&MCC=5969&MST=MN&MCITY=507-663-1220&MNM=LABOR%20ARBITRATION%20INST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30493006&MCC=5969&MST=MN&MCITY=507-663-1220&MNM=LABOR%20ARBITRATION%20INST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=37611688&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262456066736
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=37611688&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205262456066736
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=3570837&MCC=5085&MST=IN&MCITY=219-8798868&MNM=DWYER%20INSTRUMENTS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=3570837&MCC=5085&MST=IN&MCITY=219-8798868&MNM=DWYER%20INSTRUMENTS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=35031769&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4460388&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20ASSOC%20OF%20SAN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=35031769&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4460388&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20ASSOC%20OF%20SAN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31483446&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=888-654-0143&MNM=ART.COM/ALLPOSTERS.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31483446&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=888-654-0143&MNM=ART.COM/ALLPOSTERS.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=45364827&MCC=5085&MST=TX&MCITY=281-5716000&MNM=TIFCO%20INDUSTRIES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=45364827&MCC=5085&MST=TX&MCITY=281-5716000&MNM=TIFCO%20INDUSTRIES%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=55774585&MCC=5199&MST=PA&MCITY=412-252-7000&MNM=AIRSCENT%20ALPHA%20AROMATICS


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE AROMATICS

47971 OFFICE 5943 OFFICESUPPLY.CO 866-302-5397 WI 481.78 2 240.89 0.00 0 481.78 0.75% 2 37.74

SUPPLIES M

47963 BUSINESS 8999 IN *KEN GRADY 415-8835924 CA 470.34 1 470.34 0.00 0 470.34 0.74% 1 39.43

EXPENS COMPANY, IN

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS.COM 9301 847-286-1940 IL 467.61 1 467.61 0.00 0 467.61 0.73% 1 38.61

TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 GRAYBAR 314-573-9200 MO 461.53 1 461.53 0.00 0 461.53 0.72% 1 40.04

TRADE ELECTRIC 

COMPANY

47972 OTHER 5999 CRAWFORD TOOL 770-6318222 GA 433.15 1 433.15 0.00 0 433.15 0.68% 1 0.00

47963 BUSINESS 8299 AMERICAN 210-2264600 TX 429.00 1 429.00 0.00 0 429.00 0.67% 1 0.00

EXPENS PAYROLL 

ASSOCIAT

47970 OFFICE 2741 ABACUS 510-7859990 CA 426.16 2 213.08 0.00 0 426.16 0.67% 2 34.92

SERVICES PRODUCTS INC.

47963 BUSINESS 8398 NIGP 800-367-6447 VA 425.00 1 425.00 0.00 0 425.00 0.67% 1 0.00

EXPENS

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 STEVEN 650-7459147 CA 416.64 1 416.64 0.00 0 416.64 0.65% 1 0.00

TRADE ENGINEERING

47978 VEHICLE 5533 WESTERN ENGINE 661-397-9155 CA 410.44 1 410.44 0.00 0 410.44 0.64% 1 0.00

EXPENSE DISTRBT

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 LOWES #01132* UNION CITY CA 401.76 7 57.39 0.00 0 401.76 0.63% 7 34.85

47970 OFFICE 8911 BROWN AND 925-2102277 CO 400.00 2 200.00 0.00 0 400.00 0.63% 2 0.00

SERVICES CALDWELL

47970 OFFICE 7399 CAL OSHA 916-774-4000 CA 395.00 1 395.00 0.00 0 395.00 0.62% 1 0.00

SERVICES REPORTER

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 392.90 7 56.13 0.00 0 392.90 0.62% 7 34.10

SUPPLIES

47971 OFFICE 5943 OFFICE MAX UNION CITY CA 376.73 5 75.35 0.00 0 376.73 0.59% 5 14.02

SUPPLIES

150085 MCC5969 5969 4IMPRINT 877-4467746 WI 355.39 1 355.39 0.00 0 355.39 0.56% 1 0.00

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. 8641 FREMONT FREMONT CA 350.00 1 350.00 0.00 0 350.00 0.55% 1 0.00

CHAMBER OF 

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     3

Page 92 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=55774585&MCC=5199&MST=PA&MCITY=412-252-7000&MNM=AIRSCENT%20ALPHA%20AROMATICS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=53429393&MCC=5943&MST=WI&MCITY=866-302-5397&MNM=OFFICESUPPLY.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=53429393&MCC=5943&MST=WI&MCITY=866-302-5397&MNM=OFFICESUPPLY.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57692004&MCC=8999&MST=CA&MCITY=415-8835924&MNM=IN%20*KEN%20GRADY%20COMPANY,%20IN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57692004&MCC=8999&MST=CA&MCITY=415-8835924&MNM=IN%20*KEN%20GRADY%20COMPANY,%20IN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=62537700&MCC=5311&MST=IL&MCITY=847-286-1940&MNM=SEARS.COM%209301
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26228753&MCC=5065&MST=MO&MCITY=314-573-9200&MNM=GRAYBAR%20ELECTRIC%20COMPANY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26228753&MCC=5065&MST=MO&MCITY=314-573-9200&MNM=GRAYBAR%20ELECTRIC%20COMPANY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26228753&MCC=5065&MST=MO&MCITY=314-573-9200&MNM=GRAYBAR%20ELECTRIC%20COMPANY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=8369346&MCC=5999&MST=GA&MCITY=770-6318222&MNM=CRAWFORD%20TOOL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25968975&MCC=8299&MST=TX&MCITY=210-2264600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOCIAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25968975&MCC=8299&MST=TX&MCITY=210-2264600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOCIAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25968975&MCC=8299&MST=TX&MCITY=210-2264600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOCIAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25615439&MCC=2741&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7859990&MNM=ABACUS%20PRODUCTS%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25615439&MCC=2741&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7859990&MNM=ABACUS%20PRODUCTS%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=50222974&MCC=8398&MST=VA&MCITY=800-367-6447&MNM=NIGP
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=28123574&MCC=5065&MST=CA&MCITY=650-7459147&MNM=STEVEN%20ENGINEERING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=28123574&MCC=5065&MST=CA&MCITY=650-7459147&MNM=STEVEN%20ENGINEERING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32499791&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=661-397-9155&MNM=WESTERN%20ENGINE%20DISTRBT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32499791&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=661-397-9155&MNM=WESTERN%20ENGINE%20DISTRBT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=16848809&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LOWES%20%2301132*
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34941927&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34941927&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=18204480&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-774-4000&MNM=CAL%20OSHA%20REPORTER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=18204480&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-774-4000&MNM=CAL%20OSHA%20REPORTER
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12629390&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=13239601&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=OFFICE%20MAX
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=13728599&MCC=5969&MST=WI&MCITY=877-4467746&MNM=4IMPRINT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11294296&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20CMMRC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11294296&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20CMMRC


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. CMMRC

252142 MCC7392 7392 IN *TURNER RISK 510-3646010 CA 350.00 1 350.00 0.00 0 350.00 0.55% 1 0.00

CONSULTIN

47963 BUSINESS 8398 NFPA NATL FIRE 800-344-3555 MA 333.28 3 111.09 0.00 0 333.28 0.52% 3 27.38

EXPENS PROTECT

47979 WHOLESALE 5137 LANDS END BUS 800-587-1541 WI 329.37 1 329.37 0.00 0 329.37 0.52% 1 27.68

TRADE OUTFITTERS

47972 OTHER 5999 ALPINE AWARDS 510-427-3844 CA 319.13 1 319.13 0.00 0 319.13 0.50% 1 0.00

INC      UN

47972 OTHER 5941 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 317.86 1 317.86 0.00 0 317.86 0.50% 1 0.00

*RDTKL.COM

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL 800-981-3355 TX 311.47 1 311.47 0.00 0 311.47 0.49% 1 26.68

TRADE K-12/GOVT

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 PAPE MATERIAL 510-659-4100 CA 307.58 2 153.79 0.00 0 307.58 0.48% 2 0.00

TRADE HANDLING

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. 8641 PAYPAL *MSA SF 402-935-7733 CA 295.00 3 98.33 0.00 0 295.00 0.46% 3 0.00

BAY

47979 WHOLESALE 5039 KOMATSU - 510-2385275 CA 286.78 1 286.78 0.00 0 286.78 0.45% 1 0.00

TRADE OAKLAND

137510 Rialto 9399 CALIFORNIA 916-442-7887 CA 276.00 1 276.00 0.00 0 276.00 0.43% 1 0.00

SPECIAL DISTR

47978 VEHICLE 5935 NAVARRA AUTO SAN JOSE CA 274.88 1 274.88 0.00 0 274.88 0.43% 1 21.88

EXPENSE AND TRUCK

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 TMS*M-I-C, INC 925-3890192 CA 265.27 1 265.27 0.00 0 265.27 0.42% 1 0.00

TRADE

47961 AUTO/RV 5511 FREMONT 408-6568700 CA 254.00 1 254.00 0.00 0 254.00 0.40% 1 0.00

DEALERS CHRYSLER DODGE

47962 BUILDING 1711 IN *NASSCO, INC. 410-4863500 MD 250.00 1 250.00 0.00 0 250.00 0.39% 1 0.00

SERVIC

47972 OTHER 5950 WWW.SWAROVSKI. 646-5789078 RI 250.00 1 250.00 0.00 0 250.00 0.39% 1 0.00

COM

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 WEF WYTHE 800-6660206 VA 249.00 1 249.00 0.00 0 249.00 0.39% 1 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 AIR AND LUBE 800-400-1934 CA 228.35 1 228.35 0.00 0 228.35 0.36% 1 0.00

TRADE SYSTEMS INC

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     4

Page 93 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11294296&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20CMMRC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57114161&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3646010&MNM=IN%20*TURNER%20RISK%20CONSULTIN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=57114161&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3646010&MNM=IN%20*TURNER%20RISK%20CONSULTIN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25918620&MCC=8398&MST=MA&MCITY=800-344-3555&MNM=NFPA%20NATL%20FIRE%20PROTECT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=25918620&MCC=8398&MST=MA&MCITY=800-344-3555&MNM=NFPA%20NATL%20FIRE%20PROTECT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31476533&MCC=5137&MST=WI&MCITY=800-587-1541&MNM=LANDS%20END%20BUS%20OUTFITTERS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31476533&MCC=5137&MST=WI&MCITY=800-587-1541&MNM=LANDS%20END%20BUS%20OUTFITTERS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=63187589&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-427-3844&MNM=ALPINE%20AWARDS%20INC%20%20%20%20%20%20UN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=63187589&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-427-3844&MNM=ALPINE%20AWARDS%20INC%20%20%20%20%20%20UN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19313803&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*RDTKL.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19313803&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*RDTKL.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=17395265&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-981-3355&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20K-12/GOVT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=17395265&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-981-3355&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20K-12/GOVT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39684287&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=510-659-4100&MNM=PAPE%20MATERIAL%20HANDLING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39684287&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=510-659-4100&MNM=PAPE%20MATERIAL%20HANDLING
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=18861547&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*MSA%20SF%20BAY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=18861547&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*MSA%20SF%20BAY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34746242&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=510-2385275&MNM=KOMATSU%20-%20OAKLAND
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34746242&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=510-2385275&MNM=KOMATSU%20-%20OAKLAND
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=38122879&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-442-7887&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SPECIAL%20DISTR
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=38122879&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-442-7887&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SPECIAL%20DISTR
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=51646661&MCC=5935&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20JOSE&MNM=NAVARRA%20AUTO%20AND%20TRUCK
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=51646661&MCC=5935&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20JOSE&MNM=NAVARRA%20AUTO%20AND%20TRUCK
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=62153093&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=925-3890192&MNM=TMS*M-I-C,%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=36947402&MCC=5511&MST=CA&MCITY=408-6568700&MNM=FREMONT%20CHRYSLER%20DODGE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=36947402&MCC=5511&MST=CA&MCITY=408-6568700&MNM=FREMONT%20CHRYSLER%20DODGE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=58847323&MCC=1711&MST=MD&MCITY=410-4863500&MNM=IN%20*NASSCO,%20INC.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=58382188&MCC=5950&MST=RI&MCITY=646-5789078&MNM=WWW.SWAROVSKI.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=58382188&MCC=5950&MST=RI&MCITY=646-5789078&MNM=WWW.SWAROVSKI.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=61571186&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=800-6660206&MNM=WEF%20WYTHE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33184711&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=800-400-1934&MNM=AIR%20AND%20LUBE%20SYSTEMS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33184711&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=800-400-1934&MNM=AIR%20AND%20LUBE%20SYSTEMS%20INC


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47970 OFFICE 7399 HTTP://WEBEX.COM 916-861-3174 CA $ 228.00 1 $ 228.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 228.00 0.36% 1 $ 0.00

SERVICES

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 D & F LIQUIDATORS 510-785-9600 CA 220.68 1 220.68 0.00 0 220.68 0.35% 1 0.00

TRADE

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CALIFORNIA 650-366-1042 CA 200.00 1 200.00 0.00 0 200.00 0.31% 1 0.00

STORMWATER QU

47970 OFFICE 7399 ACT*CAPPO 2014 877-551-5560 CA 199.00 1 199.00 0.00 0 199.00 0.31% 1 0.00

SERVICES CONFERE

47963 BUSINESS 8299 DC TRAINING - 631-4159300 NY 198.00 1 198.00 0.00 0 198.00 0.31% 1 0.00

EXPENS CORPORATE

47979 WHOLESALE 5192 SAN FRANCISCO 415-989-2522 CA 195.00 1 195.00 0.00 0 195.00 0.31% 1 0.00

TRADE BIZ TIMES

47971 OFFICE 4812 HEADSETSCOM 800-432-3738 CA 192.47 1 192.47 0.00 0 192.47 0.30% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES

47978 VEHICLE 5533 PEPBOYS STORE  UNION CITY CA 192.12 2 96.06 0.00 0 192.12 0.30% 2 16.66

EXPENSE 816

47979 WHOLESALE 5044 PTM DOCUMENT 707-5766304 CA 185.05 1 185.05 0.00 0 185.05 0.29% 1 13.13

TRADE SYSTEMS INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5072 CELEBRATION 510-887-2729 CA 185.00 2 92.50 0.00 0 185.00 0.29% 2 0.00

TRADE PARTY EQUIP

47970 OFFICE 8734 JET-CARE INT'L, INC 973-2929597 NJ 169.65 1 169.65 0.00 0 169.65 0.27% 1 1.70

SERVICES

47962 BUILDING 7623 NORTHAIRE SAN JOSE CA 166.28 1 166.28 0.00 0 166.28 0.26% 1 13.38

SERVIC SUPPLY CO.

47960 AIRLINE 3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 166.20 1 166.20 0.00 0 166.20 0.26% 1 0.00

0162430753511

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 ORCHARD SUPPLY FREMONT CA 165.62 2 82.81 0.00 0 165.62 0.26% 2 13.68

#100

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 ORIENTAL 800-228-0475 NE 160.98 1 160.98 0.00 0 160.98 0.25% 1 0.00

E TRADING CO

47963 BUSINESS 8299 FREDPRYOR 800-5563012 KS 149.00 1 149.00 0.00 0 149.00 0.23% 1 0.00

EXPENS CAREERTRACK

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. 8641 FREMONT 510-7952244 CA 138.00 1 138.00 0.00 0 138.00 0.22% 1 0.00

CHAMBER OF 

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     5

Page 94 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=36535217&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=916-861-3174&MNM=HTTP%3A//WEBEX.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26380403&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=510-785-9600&MNM=D%20%26%20F%20LIQUIDATORS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=61629428&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=650-366-1042&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20STORMWATER%20QU
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=61629428&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=650-366-1042&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20STORMWATER%20QU
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=61735040&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=877-551-5560&MNM=ACT*CAPPO%202014%20CONFERE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=61735040&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=877-551-5560&MNM=ACT*CAPPO%202014%20CONFERE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32958669&MCC=8299&MST=NY&MCITY=631-4159300&MNM=DC%20TRAINING%20-%20CORPORATE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32958669&MCC=8299&MST=NY&MCITY=631-4159300&MNM=DC%20TRAINING%20-%20CORPORATE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=7251721&MCC=5192&MST=CA&MCITY=415-989-2522&MNM=SAN%20FRANCISCO%20BIZ%20TIMES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=7251721&MCC=5192&MST=CA&MCITY=415-989-2522&MNM=SAN%20FRANCISCO%20BIZ%20TIMES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=28444277&MCC=4812&MST=CA&MCITY=800-432-3738&MNM=HEADSETSCOM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33398580&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=PEPBOYS%20STORE%20%20816
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33398580&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=PEPBOYS%20STORE%20%20816
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26494750&MCC=5044&MST=CA&MCITY=707-5766304&MNM=PTM%20DOCUMENT%20SYSTEMS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26494750&MCC=5044&MST=CA&MCITY=707-5766304&MNM=PTM%20DOCUMENT%20SYSTEMS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33470039&MCC=5072&MST=CA&MCITY=510-887-2729&MNM=CELEBRATION%20PARTY%20EQUIP
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33470039&MCC=5072&MST=CA&MCITY=510-887-2729&MNM=CELEBRATION%20PARTY%20EQUIP
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=8734&MST=NJ&MCITY=973-2929597&MNM=JET-CARE%20INT%27%27L,%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=51850431&MCC=7623&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20JOSE&MNM=NORTHAIRE%20SUPPLY%20CO.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=51850431&MCC=7623&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20JOSE&MNM=NORTHAIRE%20SUPPLY%20CO.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41069804&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162430753511
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41069804&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162430753511
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=2776127&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=ORCHARD%20SUPPLY%20%23100
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=2776127&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=ORCHARD%20SUPPLY%20%23100
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=53760023&MCC=5964&MST=NE&MCITY=800-228-0475&MNM=ORIENTAL%20TRADING%20CO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=53760023&MCC=5964&MST=NE&MCITY=800-228-0475&MNM=ORIENTAL%20TRADING%20CO
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39186925&MCC=8299&MST=KS&MCITY=800-5563012&MNM=FREDPRYOR%20CAREERTRACK
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39186925&MCC=8299&MST=KS&MCITY=800-5563012&MNM=FREDPRYOR%20CAREERTRACK
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31298315&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7952244&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20CMMR
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31298315&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7952244&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20CMMR


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. CMMR

47979 WHOLESALE 5310 WAL-MART #2031 UNION CITY CA 136.22 2 68.11 0.00 0 136.22 0.21% 2 11.82

TRADE

252142 MCC7392 7392 PESTICIDE 8314423536 CA 135.00 2 67.50 0.00 0 135.00 0.21% 2 0.00

APPLICATOR'S

212656 SCCLD AUTO 5532 GOODYEAR HAYWARD CA 133.60 1 133.60 0.00 0 133.60 0.21% 1 10.88

COMMERCIAL TI

47979 WHOLESALE 5231 HAYWARD COLOR HAYWARD CA 125.02 1 125.02 0.00 0 125.02 0.20% 1 0.00

TRADE INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 THEPELICANSTOR 414-4890450 WI 123.31 1 123.31 0.00 0 123.31 0.19% 1 0.00

TRADE E COM

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 CDW GOVERNMENT 800-800-4239 IL 121.80 1 121.80 0.00 0 121.80 0.19% 1 0.00

E

47970 OFFICE 7399 EB *PUBLIC ALL 888-810-2063 CA 115.99 1 115.99 0.00 0 115.99 0.18% 1 0.00

SERVICES ACCESS

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 THE HOME DEPOT NEWARK CA 114.39 2 57.20 0.00 0 114.39 0.18% 2 9.45

#6964

47972 OTHER 5661 MUCKANDSTUFF 817-326-5470 TX 112.46 1 112.46 0.00 0 112.46 0.18% 1 0.00

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. 8641 CALIFORNIA 916-2312137 CA 110.00 1 110.00 0.00 0 110.00 0.17% 1 0.00

SOCIETY OF MUN

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS ROEBUCK   NEWARK CA 108.99 1 108.99 0.00 0 108.99 0.17% 1 9.00

TRADE 1698

47972 OTHER 5999 ALPINE AWARDS 510-429-3838 CA 105.23 1 105.23 0.00 0 105.23 0.16% 1 0.00

INC

217413 Prohibited Tran 5992 FTD*FTD.COM 501-8336470 IL 104.73 1 104.73 0.00 0 104.73 0.16% 1 0.00

150085 MCC5969 5969 SEARS ROEBUCK   800-469-4663 TX 101.02 1 101.02 0.00 0 101.02 0.16% 1 7.99

7936

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DELL SALES & 866-393-9460 TX 98.53 1 98.53 0.00 0 98.53 0.15% 1 8.55

TRADE SERVICE

47962 BUILDING 1799 IN *KOPPL 323-8882211 CA 94.46 1 94.46 0.00 0 94.46 0.15% 1 0.00

SERVIC SERVICES

47972 OTHER 5970 MICHAELS STORES UNION CITY CA 91.91 1 91.91 0.00 0 91.91 0.14% 1 0.00

2076

252142 MCC7392 7392 PAYPAL *NBS 402-935-7733 CA 85.00 1 85.00 0.00 0 85.00 0.13% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     6

Page 95 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31298315&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=510-7952244&MNM=FREMONT%20CHAMBER%20OF%20CMMR
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=10600240&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=WAL-MART%20%232031
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=46020232&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=8314423536&MNM=PESTICIDE%20APPLICATOR%27%27S
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=46020232&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=8314423536&MNM=PESTICIDE%20APPLICATOR%27%27S
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=53068641&MCC=5532&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=GOODYEAR%20COMMERCIAL%20TI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=53068641&MCC=5532&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=GOODYEAR%20COMMERCIAL%20TI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=35236110&MCC=5231&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=HAYWARD%20COLOR%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=35236110&MCC=5231&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=HAYWARD%20COLOR%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=29453557&MCC=5046&MST=WI&MCITY=414-4890450&MNM=THEPELICANSTORE%20COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=29453557&MCC=5046&MST=WI&MCITY=414-4890450&MNM=THEPELICANSTORE%20COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11535894&MCC=5964&MST=IL&MCITY=800-800-4239&MNM=CDW%20GOVERNMENT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=63437247&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=888-810-2063&MNM=EB%20*PUBLIC%20ALL%20ACCESS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=63437247&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=888-810-2063&MNM=EB%20*PUBLIC%20ALL%20ACCESS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12802065&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236964
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12802065&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236964
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=61212795&MCC=5661&MST=TX&MCITY=817-326-5470&MNM=MUCKANDSTUFF
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26870405&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312137&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SOCIETY%20OF%20MUN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26870405&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=916-2312137&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20SOCIETY%20OF%20MUN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=331547&MCC=5311&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=SEARS%20ROEBUCK%20%20%201698
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=331547&MCC=5311&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=SEARS%20ROEBUCK%20%20%201698
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=23984075&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-429-3838&MNM=ALPINE%20AWARDS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=23984075&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=510-429-3838&MNM=ALPINE%20AWARDS%20INC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=13717564&MCC=5992&MST=IL&MCITY=501-8336470&MNM=FTD*FTD.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41017037&MCC=5969&MST=TX&MCITY=800-469-4663&MNM=SEARS%20ROEBUCK%20%20%207936
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41017037&MCC=5969&MST=TX&MCITY=800-469-4663&MNM=SEARS%20ROEBUCK%20%20%207936
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34222254&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=866-393-9460&MNM=DELL%20SALES%20%26%20SERVICE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34222254&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=866-393-9460&MNM=DELL%20SALES%20%26%20SERVICE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=55210633&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=323-8882211&MNM=IN%20*KOPPL%20SERVICES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=55210633&MCC=1799&MST=CA&MCITY=323-8882211&MNM=IN%20*KOPPL%20SERVICES
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=45003899&MCC=5970&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MICHAELS%20STORES%202076
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=45003899&MCC=5970&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MICHAELS%20STORES%202076
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19512462&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*NBS


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 BUSINESS 8398 WPY*CONSTANT 855-469-3729 CA $ 80.00 1 $ 80.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 80.00 0.13% 1 $ 0.00

EXPENS CONTACT EVEN

47970 OFFICE 7338 FEDEXOFFICE   UNION CITY CA 76.49 1 76.49 0.00 0 76.49 0.12% 1 6.64

SERVICES 00007393

47963 BUSINESS 8299 NCS*ITL CDE 800-511-3478 MN 75.00 1 75.00 0.00 0 75.00 0.12% 1 0.00

EXPENS COUNCIL EX

47972 OTHER 5999 THE BRINKMANN 972-770-8500 TX 73.70 1 73.70 0.00 0 73.70 0.12% 1 6.08

CORPORAT

47972 OTHER 5941 PAYPAL *BOAT RV 402-935-7733 CA 72.99 1 72.99 0.00 0 72.99 0.11% 1 0.00

ACC

47972 OTHER 5732 WWW.NEWEGG.CO 800-390-1119 CA 68.78 1 68.78 0.00 0 68.78 0.11% 1 4.80

M

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 MORSE FREMONT CA 66.69 1 66.69 0.00 0 66.69 0.10% 1 0.00

TRADE HYDRAULICS USA,

47979 WHOLESALE 5047 UNITED 6363438181 MO 59.95 1 59.95 0.00 0 59.95 0.09% 1 0.00

TRADE LAB/AKA/US DIST

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 NOR*NORTHERN 800-222-5381 MN 56.21 1 56.21 0.00 0 56.21 0.09% 1 0.00

TRADE TOOL

47972 OTHER 4816 YAHOO  408-916-2149 CA 41.82 3 13.94 0.00 0 41.82 0.07% 3 0.00

*BAYAREABIOSOLI

150085 MCC5969 5969 MHP*ENGINEERING 877-876-8208 NJ 39.95 1 39.95 0.00 0 39.95 0.06% 1 0.00

NEWS R

47971 OFFICE 5943 FRANKLINCOVEYP 800-819-1812 UT 35.97 1 35.97 0.00 0 35.97 0.06% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES RODUCTS

47970 OFFICE 7333 STK*BIGSTOCKPH 855-272-5125 NY 35.00 1 35.00 0.00 0 35.00 0.05% 1 0.00

SERVICES OTO.COM

47979 WHOLESALE 5021 AA OFFICE 510-782-6110 CA 34.05 1 34.05 0.00 0 34.05 0.05% 1 0.00

TRADE EQUIPMENT CO I

47972 OTHER 5999 BATTERIES-DUBLIN, DUBLIN CA 32.68 1 32.68 0.00 0 32.68 0.05% 1 2.70

119156 MCC001 8220 UCB CPER INST 510-643-7093 CA 28.42 1 28.42 0.00 0 28.42 0.04% 1 0.00

INDSTRL RN

47972 OTHER 5941 SPORTS UNION CITY CA 26.26 1 26.26 0.00 0 26.26 0.04% 1 1.61

AUTHORI00006783

47979 WHOLESALE 5310 WALMART.COM 800-966-6546 AR 23.52 1 23.52 0.00 0 23.52 0.04% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     7

Page 96 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=54221469&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=855-469-3729&MNM=WPY*CONSTANT%20CONTACT%20EVEN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=54221469&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=855-469-3729&MNM=WPY*CONSTANT%20CONTACT%20EVEN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33956583&MCC=7338&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=FEDEXOFFICE%20%20%2000007393
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33956583&MCC=7338&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=FEDEXOFFICE%20%20%2000007393
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34129461&MCC=8299&MST=MN&MCITY=800-511-3478&MNM=NCS*ITL%20CDE%20COUNCIL%20EX
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=34129461&MCC=8299&MST=MN&MCITY=800-511-3478&MNM=NCS*ITL%20CDE%20COUNCIL%20EX
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41932357&MCC=5999&MST=TX&MCITY=972-770-8500&MNM=THE%20BRINKMANN%20CORPORAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41932357&MCC=5999&MST=TX&MCITY=972-770-8500&MNM=THE%20BRINKMANN%20CORPORAT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19313803&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*BOAT%20RV%20ACC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19313803&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*BOAT%20RV%20ACC
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12608498&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=800-390-1119&MNM=WWW.NEWEGG.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=12608498&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=800-390-1119&MNM=WWW.NEWEGG.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41710740&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=MORSE%20HYDRAULICS%20USA,
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=41710740&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=MORSE%20HYDRAULICS%20USA,
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33029755&MCC=5047&MST=MO&MCITY=6363438181&MNM=UNITED%20LAB/AKA/US%20DIST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33029755&MCC=5047&MST=MO&MCITY=6363438181&MNM=UNITED%20LAB/AKA/US%20DIST
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=18654333&MCC=5251&MST=MN&MCITY=800-222-5381&MNM=NOR*NORTHERN%20TOOL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=18654333&MCC=5251&MST=MN&MCITY=800-222-5381&MNM=NOR*NORTHERN%20TOOL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39238742&MCC=4816&MST=CA&MCITY=408-916-2149&MNM=YAHOO%20%20*BAYAREABIOSOLI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=39238742&MCC=4816&MST=CA&MCITY=408-916-2149&MNM=YAHOO%20%20*BAYAREABIOSOLI
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11768225&MCC=5969&MST=NJ&MCITY=877-876-8208&MNM=MHP*ENGINEERING%20NEWS%20R
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=11768225&MCC=5969&MST=NJ&MCITY=877-876-8208&MNM=MHP*ENGINEERING%20NEWS%20R
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=20071903&MCC=5943&MST=UT&MCITY=800-819-1812&MNM=FRANKLINCOVEYPRODUCTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=20071903&MCC=5943&MST=UT&MCITY=800-819-1812&MNM=FRANKLINCOVEYPRODUCTS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=56861550&MCC=7333&MST=NY&MCITY=855-272-5125&MNM=STK*BIGSTOCKPHOTO.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=56861550&MCC=7333&MST=NY&MCITY=855-272-5125&MNM=STK*BIGSTOCKPHOTO.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=51085098&MCC=5021&MST=CA&MCITY=510-782-6110&MNM=AA%20OFFICE%20EQUIPMENT%20CO%20I
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=51085098&MCC=5021&MST=CA&MCITY=510-782-6110&MNM=AA%20OFFICE%20EQUIPMENT%20CO%20I
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=21445806&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=DUBLIN&MNM=BATTERIES-DUBLIN,
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=9290944&MCC=8220&MST=CA&MCITY=510-643-7093&MNM=UCB%20CPER%20INST%20INDSTRL%20RN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=9290944&MCC=8220&MST=CA&MCITY=510-643-7093&MNM=UCB%20CPER%20INST%20INDSTRL%20RN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=24953110&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=SPORTS%20AUTHORI00006783
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=24953110&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=SPORTS%20AUTHORI00006783
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32658120&MCC=5310&MST=AR&MCITY=800-966-6546&MNM=WALMART.COM%208009666546


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE 8009666546

47978 VEHICLE 5533 OREILLY AUTO  FREMONT CA 22.86 1 22.86 0.00 0 22.86 0.04% 1 1.89

EXPENSE 00027805

47972 OTHER 5999 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 22.50 1 22.50 0.00 0 22.50 0.04% 1 0.00

*PROMETERS20

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 INDUSTRIAL TEST 803-3299712 SC 20.99 1 20.99 0.00 0 20.99 0.03% 1 0.00

TRADE SYSTEM

5085 INDUSTRIAL TEST 803-3299712 SC 20.99 1 20.99 0.00 0 20.99 0.03% 1 0.00

SYSTEM

47972 OTHER 5735 AMAZON 866-321-8851 WA 18.24 2 9.12 0.00 0 18.24 0.03% 2 0.00

SERVICES-KINDLE

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 PAYPAL *MARK 402-935-7733 CA 15.25 1 15.25 0.00 0 15.25 0.02% 1 0.00

TRADE

47972 OTHER 5735 APL* 866-712-7753 CA 9.90 1 9.90 0.00 0 9.90 0.02% 1 0.00

ITUNES.COM/BILL

47973 OTHER TRAVEL 4111 BART-E 5104646979 CA 9.50 1 9.50 0.00 0 9.50 0.01% 1 0.00

DUBLIN/PLEASQPS

47972 OTHER 5941 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 6.67 1 6.67 0.00 0 6.67 0.01% 1 0.00

*VXBBEARINGS

47973 OTHER TRAVEL 4111 BART-12TH 5104646979 CA 1.50 1 1.50 0.00 0 1.50 0.00% 1 0.00

STREET   QPS

47970 OFFICE 5968 AMAZONPRIME AMZN.COM/PRME NV 108.41 1 108.41 108.41 1 0.00 0.00% 2 0.00

SERVICES MEMBERSHIP

47972 OTHER 4816 DNH*GODADDY.CO 480-5058855 AZ 1,199.88 2 599.94 1,199.88 2 0.00 0.00% 4 0.00

M

47973 OTHER TRAVEL 4789 SHUTTLE EXPRESS RENTON WA 117.00 2 58.50 117.00 2 0.00 0.00% 4 0.00

INCORPORA

47963 BUSINESS 8398 CA WATER ENV 5103827800 CA 0.00 0 0.00 78.00 1 (78.00) 0.00% 1 0.00

EXPENS ASSN

138753 SEMINAR/CONF. 8641 PAYPAL *MSA SF 4029357733 CA 0.00 0 0.00 85.00 1 (85.00) 0.00% 1 0.00

BAY

47972 OTHER 5941 PAYPAL 4029357733 CA 0.00 0 0.00 317.86 1 (317.86) 0.00% 1 0.00

*RDTKL.COM

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 ECOM AMERICA, GAINESVILLE GA 0.00 0 0.00 350.00 1 (350.00) (0.55%) 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     8

Page 97 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=32658120&MCC=5310&MST=AR&MCITY=800-966-6546&MNM=WALMART.COM%208009666546
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30182026&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=OREILLY%20AUTO%20%2000027805
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=30182026&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=OREILLY%20AUTO%20%2000027805
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=7708576&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PROMETERS20
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=7708576&MCC=5999&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PROMETERS20
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5085&MST=SC&MCITY=803-3299712&MNM=INDUSTRIAL%20TEST%20SYSTEM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5085&MST=SC&MCITY=803-3299712&MNM=INDUSTRIAL%20TEST%20SYSTEM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=62585811&MCC=5085&MST=SC&MCITY=803-3299712&MNM=INDUSTRIAL%20TEST%20SYSTEM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=62585811&MCC=5085&MST=SC&MCITY=803-3299712&MNM=INDUSTRIAL%20TEST%20SYSTEM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=27882074&MCC=5735&MST=WA&MCITY=866-321-8851&MNM=AMAZON%20SERVICES-KINDLE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=27882074&MCC=5735&MST=WA&MCITY=866-321-8851&MNM=AMAZON%20SERVICES-KINDLE
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=10633019&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*MARK
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=58734333&MCC=5735&MST=CA&MCITY=866-712-7753&MNM=APL*%20ITUNES.COM/BILL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=58734333&MCC=5735&MST=CA&MCITY=866-712-7753&MNM=APL*%20ITUNES.COM/BILL
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26193297&MCC=4111&MST=CA&MCITY=5104646979&MNM=BART-E%20DUBLIN/PLEASQPS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=26193297&MCC=4111&MST=CA&MCITY=5104646979&MNM=BART-E%20DUBLIN/PLEASQPS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19313803&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*VXBBEARINGS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19313803&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*VXBBEARINGS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=4111&MST=CA&MCITY=5104646979&MNM=BART-12TH%20STREET%20%20%20QPS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=4111&MST=CA&MCITY=5104646979&MNM=BART-12TH%20STREET%20%20%20QPS
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=47183854&MCC=5968&MST=NV&MCITY=AMZN.COM/PRME&MNM=AMAZONPRIME%20MEMBERSHIP
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=47183854&MCC=5968&MST=NV&MCITY=AMZN.COM/PRME&MNM=AMAZONPRIME%20MEMBERSHIP
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=59717979&MCC=4816&MST=AZ&MCITY=480-5058855&MNM=DNH*GODADDY.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=59717979&MCC=4816&MST=AZ&MCITY=480-5058855&MNM=DNH*GODADDY.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=47754199&MCC=4789&MST=WA&MCITY=RENTON&MNM=SHUTTLE%20EXPRESS%20INCORPORA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=47754199&MCC=4789&MST=WA&MCITY=RENTON&MNM=SHUTTLE%20EXPRESS%20INCORPORA
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31043278&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=5103827800&MNM=CA%20WATER%20ENV%20ASSN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=31043278&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=5103827800&MNM=CA%20WATER%20ENV%20ASSN
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33884799&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*MSA%20SF%20BAY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=33884799&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*MSA%20SF%20BAY
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19556217&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*RDTKL.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=19556217&MCC=5941&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*RDTKL.COM
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43328365&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=GAINESVILLE&MNM=ECOM%20AMERICA,%20LTD.


State of California

Report Date: 01/12/2015

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE LTD.

47972 OTHER 5732 PAYPAL 4029357733 CA 0.00 0 0.00 409.00 1 (409.00) (0.64%) 1 0.00

*TMDISTRIBUT

Total $66,789.94 $2,926.38 $63,863.56 258 $ 1,046.77

Total Number of Records:         141

End of Report

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19  Page     9

Page 98 of 127

https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=43328365&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=GAINESVILLE&MNM=ECOM%20AMERICA,%20LTD.
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=10091926&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*TMDISTRIBUT
https://access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=10091926&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*TMDISTRIBUT


State of California
Report Date: 01/12/2015            

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail Output Parameter Page

Cycle Close Date Range: 10/2014 to 12/2014
Report Type: Detail

Merchant Profile Source: Association
Merchant Names: All

Merchant Category Code Group: All
Merchant States: All

Sort Report By: (1) Total Spend, (2) No Sort, (3) No Sort, (4) No Sort
Break/Subtotal Level: No Break/Subtotal

 Processing Hierarchy Position: Bank Agent Company Division Department

1425 3135 51756 All All

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / troung1 / 01/12/2015 13:13:19 / MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1421089996274_6550_07285394818580304  Page    10

Page 99 of 127



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 15, 2015  
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, P.E., General Manager/District Engineer 
 Richard Cortes, Business Services Manager 
 Deborah Kull, Sr. Accountant 
  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14c - Meeting of January 26, 2015 
 Information Item: Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student 

Loan Program 
 
Reporting Period:  July 1, 2014 – December 31, 2014 
 
Maximum USD Commitment for Computer Loans    $50,000 
Maximum USD Commitment for Student Loans     $15,000 
 
 Outstanding Loans July 1, 2014    $22,787 
  Computer   $22,787 
  Student   $         0 
 
 Add: New Loan Disbursements    $  3,443 
 Computer   $  3,443 
 Student   $         0 
 
 Less: Payroll Deduction Payments   $  9,832 
    Computer   $  9,832 
    Student   $         0 
   
 Loans Outstanding      $16,398 
    Computer   $16,398 
    Student   $         0 
 
Funds Available - Computer and Student     $33,602 

Page 100 of 127



 
Statistics – Computer Purchase Loans 
 Current average loan balance      $     781 
 Employees currently participating               21 
 Number of current employees who have participated            67 
 Current period average original loan     $  1,148 

Page 101 of 127



 

 Directors 
 Manny Fernandez 
 Tom Handley 
 Pat Kite 
 Anjali Lathi 
 Jennifer Toy 
  
 Officers 
 Paul R. Eldredge 
 General Manager/  
 District Engineer 
  
 David M. O’Hara 
 Attorney 

 
DATE: January 16, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14.d – Meeting of January 26, 2015 

 Information Item:  Solar Facilities Operational Update 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
This is an information item.  Staff will provide the Board an operational update of the 
solar facilities at the District. 
 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 
The District completed construction of the Solar Carport facility located at the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant at a cost of $884,000 and began operation in September 
2011.  The system consists of 637 solar panels and is rated at 125 kilowatt (kW).  The 
system rating is based on the California Energy Commission’s calculation that takes into 
account the number of panels, the rating of each panel and the inverter efficiency. 
 
The District applied for the California Solar Initiative (CSI) incentive that would rebate 
$0.2568 per kilowatt-hour (kWh) of power generated by the system for a period of five 
years.  PG&E, the administrator of the CSI program, approved an estimated incentive 
amount of $252,850. 
 
Through November 30, 2014, the Solar Carport facility has generated a total of 861,719 
kWh of power, which equates to $139,671 in energy savings at the Plant.  Additionally, 
the District has received $177,866 or approximately 70% of CSI incentive rebate from 
PG&E.  The total benefit of the Solar Carport is $317,537, which represents 35.9% of 
simple payback for the initial construction cost of the facility. 
 
  

Page 102 of 127



Agenda Item No. 14.d 
Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
Irvington Pump Station 
 
The District completed construction of the solar facility located at the Irvington Pump 
Station at a cost of $2.85 million and began operation in April 2012.  The system 
consists of 1,680 solar panels and is rated at 408 kW. 
 
The District applied for the CSI incentive that would rebate $0.15 per kWh of power 
generated by the system for a period of five years.  PG&E approved an estimated 
incentive amount of $623,370. 
 
Through December 4, 2014, the solar facility has generated a total of 2,597,924 kWh of 
power, which equates to $751,501 in energy savings at the Irvington Pump Station.  
Additionally, the District has received $354,939 or 57% of CSI incentive rebate from 
PG&E.  The total benefit of the solar facility is $1,106,440, which represents 38.8% of 
simple payback for the initial construction cost of the facility. 
 
 
Cogeneration System 
 
Operational testing for the new Cogeneration System took place during fall of 2014.  
Staff accepted the two 850-kilowatt engine generators and took beneficial occupancy in 
November 2014.  At the present time there has not been sufficient data generated to 
update the Board regarding the system’s performance.  However, staff will include 
related operational information in subsequent updates to the Board. 
 
 
Staff will provide the Board an update of the District’s green energy facilities on a semi-
annual basis. The attached Table 1 summarizes the operational data that was 
discussed in this update. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/CB;ks 
 
 
Attachment:  Table 1 

Page 103 of 127



Union Sanitary District
Table 1 - Solar Facilities Operational Data

Facility
System 
Rating1 

(kW)

Energy 
Generated 

This 
Period2

(kWh)

Total 
Energy 

Generated 
To Date 
(kWh)

Value of 
Energy 

Generated 
To Date 

($)

Rebates or 
grants 

received 
To Date

($)

Total 
Received or 
Generated 

($)

Construction 
Cost
($)

Simple 
Payback 
To Date 

(%)

Comments

Alvarado WWTP Solar 
Carport

125 112,229 861,719 139,671 177,866 317,537 884,000 35.9%
System began operation in September 

2011.  Values are current through 
November 30, 2014.

Irvington Pump Station 408 485,640 2,597,924 751,501 354,939 1,106,440 2,850,000 38.8%
System began operation in April 2012.  

Values are current through December 4, 
2014.

   1) System Rating is based on the number of panels, the rating of each panel, and the inverter efficiency.
   2) Period is from June 2014 through November 2014.
   3) kW = kilowatt
   4) kWh = kilowatt-hour

Page 104 of 127



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: January 19, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 

Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14e - Meeting of January 26, 2015 
 Information Item: Update of the Subsurface Investigation at the 

Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant 
  
Recommendation 
 
This is an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Alameda County Water District (ACWD) is responsible for regulating the 
groundwater supply within our service area, most of which is underlain by aquifers that 
provide drinking water for the three cities.  In 1999, pursuant to ACWD’s request to 
investigate potential releases of petroleum hydrocarbons into soil and groundwater 
beneath the treatment plant property, the District initiated environmental investigation 
activities in three areas of the plant.  These areas are shown in Figure 1 and are 
summarized as follows: 
 

• Former Boneyard Area – The District conducted an environmental investigation 
and remediation in this area (Figure 2), which was previously used for equipment 
storage and maintenance.  The investigation indicated a subsurface petroleum 
impact of primarily diesel-range hydrocarbons.  In the summer of 1999, a source 
removal operation was conducted with approximately 5,000 cubic yards of 
impacted soil excavated and disposed offsite.  Upon completing the soil removal, 
the District backfilled the excavation with clean fill, installed three groundwater 
monitoring wells (MW-1 through MW-3) and initiated monitoring these wells. 

Page 105 of 127



Agenda Item No. 14e 
Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

• Former 550-Gallon Gasoline Underground Storage Tank (UST) Area – In August 
1999, a subsurface investigation was initiated in this area (Figure 3) after the 
observation of hydrocarbon odors emanating from an excavation performed 
during construction at the facility.  In September 2000, the District removed this 
UST under the oversight of the Union City Environmental Program Department 
(UCEPD) and the ACWD.  Observations made during the UST removal indicated 
that the subsurface petroleum hydrocarbons likely originated from a leak in an 
underground fuel line beneath a fuel dispenser. The District over-excavated 
impacted soil in the suspected source area. 
 
In 2000, another subsurface investigation was conducted at the Site to assess 
whether petroleum hydrocarbons were present in soil near a 10,000-gallon diesel 
UST and a 1,000-gallon waste oil UST. This investigation was conducted at the 
request of the UCEPD after pressure testing indicated potential failures of the 
secondary containment systems of these USTs.  The investigation included 
collecting soil and grab groundwater samples from borings advanced throughout 
the area. The laboratory results indicated the presence of hydrocarbons 
associated with gasoline, primarily methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE), and not 
diesel or waste oil. It was concluded that these hydrocarbons were likely from the 
former 550-gallon gasoline UST. 
 
In 2003, the District installed and initiated monitoring of five groundwater 
monitoring wells (MW-5 through MW-9) in this area.  Well MW-4 was an existing 
well in the area and was included in the groundwater monitoring program. 
 

• Closed-in-place 6,000-gallon Diesel UST Area – The subsequent investigation 
conducted in 2000 also included sampling the subsurface in the vicinity of a 
6,000-gallon diesel UST located in the southwest corner of the plant (Figure 4). 
The soil and grab groundwater samples collected adjacent to this UST contained 
detectable concentrations of petroleum hydrocarbons in the diesel range. The 
6,000-gallon diesel UST was closed-in-place by the District in June 2005 under 
oversight from the City of Union City and the ACWD. 
 
In 2003, the District installed and initiated monitoring of one groundwater 
monitoring well (MW-10) in this area. 

 
Groundwater Monitoring Program 
 
The purpose of the plant’s groundwater monitoring program is to document groundwater 
conditions in the areas of concern.  The monitoring is performed to evaluate changes in 
water levels and groundwater flow direction and gradient, establish water quality 
conditions, and assess hydrocarbon concentration trends.  The ten groundwater 
monitoring wells were initially monitored quarterly but upon approval of the ACWD, the 
frequency was reduced to semi-annual or annual in subsequent years.  Due to the 

Page 106 of 127



Agenda Item No. 14e 
Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 
analytical results at wells MW-4, MW-9, and MW-10, the ACWD approved the removal 
of these wells from the monitoring program and the District closed the wells in 2008. 
 
The current sampling schedule of the remaining seven wells is summarized in Table 1 
below: 
 

Table 1 – Summary of Sampling Schedule 
Well Sampling Frequency Sampling Constituents 

MW-1 Annual TPH-D, TPH-MO, Monthly Purging 
MW-2 Annual TPH-D, TPH-MO 
MW-3 Annual TPH-D, TPH-MO 
MW-5 Annual MTBE, TBA 
MW-6 Removed from Sampling Groundwater Level Measurement Only 
MW-7 Removed from Sampling Groundwater Level Measurement Only 
MW-8 Annual MTBE, TBA 

 
Legend 
TBA = tertiary-butyl alcohol 
MTBE = methyl tertiary-butyl ether 
TPH-D = total petroleum hydrocarbons as diesel 
TPH-MO = total petroleum hydrocarbons as motor oil 

 
Beginning in 2007, staff has conducted monthly purging of the light, non-aqueous phase 
liquid (LNAPL) present in well MW-1.  The objective of this purging is to eliminate the 
LNAPL layer observed in this monitoring well and mitigate the elevated dissolved 
petroleum hydrocarbons present in the groundwater in its vicinity. 
 
Annual 2014 Groundwater Monitoring Event 
 
In September 2014, staff procured the services of Brown and Caldwell to sample the 
groundwater from the wells, analyze the test results, and prepare a report.  The 
conclusions from the annual 2014 groundwater monitoring event are as follows: 
 

1. Groundwater elevations in the Former Boneyard Area and the Former 550-
Gallon UST Area have remained consistent throughout the year with previous 
years, with the groundwater flow direction corresponding with the results from the 
previous monitoring events. 

 
2. One of four monitoring wells (MW-5) measured contained groundwater with an 

electrical conductivity that exceeded the State Water Resources Control Board’s 
(SWRCB’s) acceptable limits for a groundwater source to be considered suitable, 
or potentially suitable, for domestic or municipal drinking water supply.  Electrical 
conductivity in water is a measurement to determine the concentration of total 
dissolved solids. 

 
3. A less than 0.1 foot thick layer of LNAPL was encountered in well MW-1 during 

the Annual 2014 event. 

Page 107 of 127



Agenda Item No. 14e 
Meeting of January 26, 2015 
Page 4 
 
 
 

4. Since August 2007, the District has conducted 79 monthly purging events on 
MW-1 removing a total of 469 gallons of groundwater/LNAPL mixture and 
removing approximately 3.9 gallons of LNAPL.  It appears that these purging 
events have been successfully mitigating the petroleum hydrocarbon 
concentrations present in the groundwater in the vicinity of this well. 

 
5. Drinking water environmental screen levels (ESLs) were exceeded in the 

groundwater samples collected from monitoring wells MW-1 (TPH-D and TPH-
MO), MW-5 (MTBE) and MW-8 (MTBE).  Non-drinking water ESLs were not 
exceeded in the monitoring wells for any constituent of concern, with the 
exception of TPH-D and TPHMO in MW-1. 

 
Even though groundwater samples from wells MW-2 and MW-3 were below the 
reporting limits of the constituents, the sampling of these wells will be necessary 
to monitor the extent of the contamination plume in the groundwater table in the 
Former Boneyard Area.  No groundwater samples were taken from wells MW-6 
and MW-7 but the groundwater levels were measured to determine the 
groundwater gradient in the Former 550-Gallon Gasoline UST Area.  This will 
help document that the contamination plume is stable and has not extended 
outside the area. 

 
The analytical test results are included in Table 2. 
 
Next Steps 
 
In the past, the District has requested ACWD to allow closure of all of the wells except 
MW-1 since the analytical results show the concentrations of the constituents were 
below non-drinking ESLs.  ACWD has resisted because the groundwater beneath the 
plant site is considered a potential drinking water source and those ESLs would apply to 
the groundwater samples. 
 
In June 2014, ACWD reevaluated the District’s case under a new SWRCB low-threat 
closure policy and the review concluded that the plant’s monitoring wells were not 
eligible for closure.  However, ACWD provided a “Path to Closure Plan” for the 
monitoring wells.  Staff will hire Brown and Caldwell to review this plan and assess how 
the District can resolve the impediments to the well closure. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC;ks 
 
 
Attachments: Figures 1 through 4 
 Table 2 

Page 108 of 127



FIGURE 3 - FORMER
VEHICLE FUELING AREA

FIGURE 4 - FORMER
6,000 GALLON DIESEL UST

Figure 1
Alvarado WWTP Site Plan

FACILITIES
MAINT. BLDG.

ADMININSTRATION
BLDG.

FIELD OPERATIONS
BLDG.

CENTRIFUGE
BLDG.

GENERATOR
5 & 6 BLDG.

FIGURE 2 - FORMER
BONEYARD AREA

COVERED VEHICLE
STORAGE

Page 109 of 127



q
.

Figure 2
Former Boneyard Area

COVERED VEHICLE STORAGE

GASOLINE AND
DIESEL UST

FUEL PUMP ISLAND

.
.

MW-1

MW-3
MW-2

VEASY STREET LEGEND

               EXISTING UNDERGROUND
                   MONITORING WELL.

Page 110 of 127



q

"/

Primary
Digester #6

Maintenance Building

Generator Building

EXISTING 10,000
GALLON DIESEL UST

EXISTING 1,000 GALLON
WASTE OIL TANK

Text
FORMER 550 GALLON GASOLINE

UST AND FUEL PUMPS

MW-4

MW-9

!. MW-6

. MW-5

.
MW-7

.
MW-8

Figure 3
Former Vehicle Fueling Area

LEGEND

"/
DESTRUCTED GROUNDWATER
    MONITORING WELL

!.
EXISTING GROUNDWATER
    MONITORING WELL

DIESEL PIPELINE

WASTE OIL PIPELINE

"/

Page 111 of 127



q/

CENTRIFUGE
BUILDING

LEGEND

/

Figure 4
Closed-in-Place 6,000 Gallon Diesel UST

ODOR CONTROL
BUILDING

GENERATOR
BUILDING NO. 2

CLOSED-IN-PLACE 6,000
GALLON DIESEL UST

MW-10DESTRUCTED GROUNDWATER
MONITORING WELL

Page 112 of 127



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date
Benzene

(ug/L)
Toluene
(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene
(ug/L)

Xylenes
(ug/L)

tBA
(ug/L)

DIPE
(ug/L)

EtBE
(ug/L)

tAME
(ug/L)

MtBE
(ug/L)

TPH-G
(ug/L)

TPH-D
(ug/L)

TPH-MO
(ug/L)

PNAs          
(ug/L)

MW-1 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 61a 150 b
<250 ND

6/8/2000NF
---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ----

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 570 ndp
700 ND

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 51ndp
<500 ND

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ND

12/15/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 1,500 h 1,300 l
----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 960 h 1,000 l
----

3/21/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 3,100 h 3,600 l
----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 160 hy 19,000 h 16,000 l
----

6/28/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 18,000 h 14,000 l
----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 17,000 h 13,000 l
----

9/11/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 13,000 h 10,000 l
----

4/10/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1,600 h,y 1,200 h,l
----

4/10/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 4,700 h,y 3,800 h,l
----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 390 h 340 h,l
----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 450 <300 ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 300 y
<300 ----

3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 540 y
<300 ----

9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 120 y
<300 ----

4/21/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 890 y
550 ----

4/21/2010 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 210 y
<300 ----

9/17/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 350 y
<300 ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 510 360 ----

10/28/2011 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 320 150 ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <55 <110 ----

9/14/2012 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 210 140 ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1300 1300 ----

9/24/2013 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 320 330 ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1300 1400 ----
MW-2 ** 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <250 ND

11/8/99 Dup <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 170 ndp
<500 ND

6/8/2000 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ND
9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.0 <50 <50 <500 ND
9/18/2000 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.1 <50 <50 <500 ND

12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 240 ndp
3,700 ----

12/21/2000 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 200 ndp
4,000 ----

2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 (0.86*) <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 56ldr
1,100 ----

2/27/2001 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 71ldr
1,400 ----

12/13/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 2.2 <50 61ldr
<300 ----

3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.2 <50 65h
650 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.2 <50 <50 <300 ----
9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----
4/10/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 430 h
----

9/24/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
3/7/2008 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 350 ----
3/17/2009 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/29/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/29/2009 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/17/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/17/2010 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 69 430 ----
9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <53 <110 ----
9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <54 370 ----
9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <52 <100 ----
9/29/2014 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <53 <110 ----

\\bcwckfp01\Projects\139000\139160-USD-GWM 2010\Report\2014 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2014 Tables 1-2 10172014.xls Page 1 of 4

Page 113 of 127



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date
Benzene

(ug/L)
Toluene
(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene
(ug/L)

Xylenes
(ug/L)

tBA
(ug/L)

DIPE
(ug/L)

EtBE
(ug/L)

tAME
(ug/L)

MtBE
(ug/L)

TPH-G
(ug/L)

TPH-D
(ug/L)

TPH-MO
(ug/L)

PNAs          
(ug/L)

MW-3 ** 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 110 c
<250 ND

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ND
9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 2.1 <50 <50 <500 ND
12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 (0.97*) <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----
2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----
12/13/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 1.9 <50 <50 <300 ----
3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----
6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----
9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----
4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----

3/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 72y
<300 ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/17/2010 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <54 <110 ----
9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <55 <110 ----
9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <51 <100 ----

MW-4* 9/3/1999 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.5 <50 100 ---- ----

6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 80g
<50 <500 5.2bp

9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 <50 <500 ND
12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----
2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 <50 <500 ----
12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----
3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 <50 ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-5**
12/14/2005 <0.83 <0.83 <0.83 <0.83 <17 <0.83 <0.83 <0.83 180 <83 <50 ---- ----
12/14/2005 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 0.52 180 <50 <50 ---- ----
3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 910 <50 78 <300 ----
3/21/2006 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 870 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 320 <50 210 hy
---- ----

6/27/2006 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 690 <50 ---- ---- ----
9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 430 <50 <50 ---- ----
9/11/2006 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 510 <50 ---- ---- ----
4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 110 ---- ---- ---- ----
4/11/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 100 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <14 ---- ---- ---- 200 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/25/2007 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <14 ---- ---- ---- 130 ---- ---- ---- ----
3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- 32 ---- ---- ---- 460 ---- ---- ---- ----
3/7/2008 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <170 ---- ---- ---- 960 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <25 ---- ---- ---- 290 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/8/2008 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <25 ---- ---- ---- 390 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- <25 ---- ---- ---- 130 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/30/09 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <33 ---- ---- ---- 200 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/17/2010 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <83 ---- ---- ---- 470 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/17/2010 Dup <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <100 ---- ---- ---- 680 ---- ---- ---- ----
10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 130 ---- ---- ---- ----
10/28/2011 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 40 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- 63 ---- ---- ---- 570 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/14/2012 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- 44 ---- ---- ---- 460 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 230 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/24/2013 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <100 ---- ---- ---- 230 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <200 ---- ---- ---- 720 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/29/2014 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- <200 ---- ---- ---- 750 ---- ---- ---- ----

\\bcwckfp01\Projects\139000\139160-USD-GWM 2010\Report\2014 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2014 Tables 1-2 10172014.xls Page 2 of 4

Page 114 of 127



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date
Benzene

(ug/L)
Toluene
(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene
(ug/L)

Xylenes
(ug/L)

tBA
(ug/L)

DIPE
(ug/L)

EtBE
(ug/L)

tAME
(ug/L)

MtBE
(ug/L)

TPH-G
(ug/L)

TPH-D
(ug/L)

TPH-MO
(ug/L)

PNAs          
(ug/L)

MW-6* 12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----
3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----
6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.7 <50 <50 ---- ----
9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.6 <50 <50 ---- ----
4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 0.7 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.6 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.6 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- < 0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-7* 12/15/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 0.59 <50 <50 ---- ----
3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 <300 ----
6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 1.0 <50 <50 ---- ----
9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 1.2 <50 <50 ---- ----
4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 1.0 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.8 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 0.8 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/30/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- < 0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

MW-8** 12/15/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 58 <50 <50 ---- ----
3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 37 <50 78 <300 ----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 16 <50 61y
---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- 33 <50 55y
---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 61 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 32 ---- ---- ---- ----

3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 48 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 69 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- < 10 ---- ---- ---- 51 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/17/2010 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 ---- ---- ---- 78 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 36 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- 7.2 ---- ---- ---- 24 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- 65 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- 9.7 ---- ---- ---- ----
MW-9* 12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 52 <300 ----

6/28/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 <50 ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 <50 ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- ----
MW-10* 12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 <50 ---- ----

3/21/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 83 <300 ----
3/21/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 120 <300 ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 68y
---- ----

6/27/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 62y
---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 76y z
---- ----

9/11/2006 Dup ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 ---- ----

4/10/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- 55y
---- ----

9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ----
6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 <50 <300 ----
4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 <50 <300 ---- ----
9/24/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- ---- ---- --- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
3/7/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/9/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
3/17/2009 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <50 <300 ----
9/17/2010 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- <4 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

Field 
Equipment 
Blank

\\bcwckfp01\Projects\139000\139160-USD-GWM 2010\Report\2014 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2014 Tables 1-2 10172014.xls Page 3 of 4

Page 115 of 127



Table 2.  Analytical Results - Petroleum Hydrocarbons
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant

Well ID Sample Date
Benzene

(ug/L)
Toluene
(ug/L)

Ethylbenzene
(ug/L)

Xylenes
(ug/L)

tBA
(ug/L)

DIPE
(ug/L)

EtBE
(ug/L)

tAME
(ug/L)

MtBE
(ug/L)

TPH-G
(ug/L)

TPH-D
(ug/L)

TPH-MO
(ug/L)

PNAs          
(ug/L)

Trip Blank 11/8/1999 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
6/8/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
9/18/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <1.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
12/21/2000 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
2/27/2001 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <5.0 <50 ---- ---- ----
12/14/2005 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <10 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <50 ---- ---- ----
3/20/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.50 <50 ---- ---- ----

6/27/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

9/11/2006 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 <0.50 ---- ---- ---- ---- <2.0 <50 ---- ---- ----

4/11/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/25/2007 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/8/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/30/2008 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/17/2010 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

10/28/2011 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/14/2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- <4 ---- ---- --- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/24/2013 ---- ---- ---- ---- <10 ---- ---- --- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----

9/29/2014 ---- ---- ---- ---- <20 ---- ---- ---- <0.5 ---- ---- ---- ----
ESL - DW 1.0 40 30 20 12 NE NE NE 5.0 100 100 100

46 130 43 100 18,000 NE NE NE 1,800 210 210 210

Notes:

ug/L = micrograms per liter

Benzene analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B

Toluene analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B

Ethylbenzene analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B

Xylenes analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8020, 8021B or 8260B (concentration reported is total of m,p- and o-xylenes).

tBA = tert-Butyl Alcohol analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

DIPE = Isopropyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

EtBE = Ethyl tert-Butyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

tAME = Methyl tert-Amyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260B

MtBE = Methyl tert-Butyl Ether analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260A or 8260B

TPH-G = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons as Gasoline analyzed following modified EPA Method 8015

TPH-D = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons as Diesel analyzed following modified EPA Method 8015 and prepared with silica gel clean-up

TPH-MO = Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons as Motor Oil analyzed following modified EPA Method 8015 and prepared with silica gel clean-up

PNAs = Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8270A

ESL-DW = San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board Environmental Screening Level for sites where groundwater is a current or potential drinking water source, Table F-1a, May 2008

ESL-NDW = San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board Environmental Screening Level for sites where groundwater is not a current or potential drinking water source, Table F-1b, May 2008

Dup = Duplicate sample
<n  = Not detected above the laboratory reporting limit of n  ug/L

ND = Not detected above laboratory reporting limits for respective individual compounds

NF = Well not found

NE = Not established

---- = Not analyzed
a = Heavier gasoline range compounds are significant, chromatogram possibly shows aged gasoline pattern.
b = Medium boiling point pattern that does not match diesel, chromatogram possibly shows aged kerosene pattern.
c = Diesel range compounds are significant; no recognizable pattern.
h = Heavier hydrocarbons contributed to the quantitation.
l = Lighter hydrocarbons contributed to the quantitation.
y = Sample exhibits chromotagraphic pattern which does not resemble standard

z = Sample analyzed outside EPA Method's holding time

bp = bis (2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate concentration reported
g = Hydrocarbon reported in the gasoline range does not match laboratory's gasoline standard

ndp = Hydrocarbon reported does not match the pattern of laboratory's diesel standard

ldr = Hydrocarbon reported is in the late diesel range, and does not match laboratory's diesel standard

* = Analyzed following U.S. EPA Method 8260A
Bold = Current groundwater monitoring event

Italicized  = Concentration exceeds the respective ESL-DW

Underline = Concentration exceeds the respective ESL-NDW
 = Discontinued sampling groundwater monitoring well per approval from Alameda County Water District; MW-4, MW-9 and MW-10 were destructed on May 2, 2008

 = Well sampled annually per approval from Alameda County Water District.

ESL - NDW

\\bcwckfp01\Projects\139000\139160-USD-GWM 2010\Report\2014 Annual Report\Tables\Annual Report 2014 Tables 1-2 10172014.xls age 4 of 4

Page 116 of 127



  
 

Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 
Thursday, January 15, 2015 at 9:30 a.m. 

Prepared by: P. Eldredge 
 
• Commissioners Handley, Dias, Johnson, Peixoto and Prola were all present.   

 
• The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 

Minutes, the List of Disbursements and the Treasurer’s Report.  
 
• The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the General Manger, Managers Advisory 

Committee, Financial Management, Regulatory Affairs, Operation & Maintenance, Personnel and 
JPA Ad-Hoc Committees. The following items were discussed: 
 
• General Mangers Report The General Manager asked the Operations and Maintenance 

Manager, David Stoops to review EBDA’s asset management plan mid-year recap for fiscal 
year 2014/2015. The Authority is at about 62% of the annual budget. The Authority’s asset 
management plan provides a strategy to maintain the infrastructure and forecast spending. 
Over the next three years, the projected equipment replacement / refurbishment schedule is 
about $2,500,000. Commissioner Handley suggested that due to the age of the system should 
EBDA set aside additional reserves for repairs to the ageing infrastructure? Overall the GM 
indicated his pleasure of the asset management program in identifying critical assets, the 
likeliness of failure, the timing and associated costs. 

 
• Managers Advisory Committee (MAC) The MAC discussed storm response in December. The 

Committee also considered revision topics that may be addressed in the JPA amendment. 
 

• Financial Management Committee approved the December List of Disbursements and 
Treasurer’s Report. The Committee reviewed the schedule for the fiscal year 2015/2016 
budget process. Lastly, the Committee reviewed EBDA’s insurance costs, which have 
remained relatively flat over the past several years. 

 
• Regulatory Affairs Committee reviewed the status report (informational only, no action 

required) for the NPDES permit. EBDA staff did not determine any violations of the combined 
effluent in November of 2014. EBDA has not had any permit violations since April of 2006. 
The Regulatory Affairs Committee discussed December permit compliance. The General 
Manager advised the Committee that EBDA remained within permit limits during the 
December storm events. However EBDA came very close to some permit concerns for a few 
constituents, specifically fecal coliform and TSS. The Committee reviewed a toxics summary 
of the annual NPDES report. Staff provided a checklist of regulatory reporting completed 
during the period of July through December 2014. 
   

• O&M Committee and the General Manager reviewed recent wet weather events. Diversion 
to the Hayward Ponds was required due to the high flows throughout the system. Through 
the concerted efforts of all member agency staffs EBDA did not have any violations during this 

Page 117 of 127



event. There continues to be some discussion at the MAC level about putting together a long 
term wet weather action plan that would include utilizing the Hayward ponds, and possible 
other facilities, as ongoing flow buffer during these wet weather events. It was briefly 
mentioned that a new Hayward pump station, which is in need of replacement due to age, 
could be designed and constructed to accommodate EBDA’s use of the Hayward ponds. A 
meeting is being scheduled for early February to further the pond and pump station 
discussions.  
 

• Personnel Committee The Personnel Committee recommends not increasing the 
commissioner compensation rate for calendar year 2015. Commissioner Dias requested that 
the Commission be given the opportunity to review and vote on commissioner compensation 
annually and not have automatic increases, Commissioner Handley agreed with this. The 
General Manager was asked to provide an update on his possible retirement at the February 
Commission meeting. Should it be necessary, the General Manger suggested a search firm 
should be utilized to backfill his position. 
 

• JPA Ad-Hoc The City of Hayward has approved the non-controversial language changes to the 
Fourth JPA Amendment. Other Member Agencies are scheduled to review the Fourth JPA 
Amendment in the coming weeks. The Ad Hoc and MAC Committees agree that special studies 
to determine flow rates would be beneficial. It was suggested by the Commission that the 
next revisions of the JPA should capture the importance and contributions of the MAC. The 
General Manager will develop special study RFPs for the MAC and Ad Hoc Committees to 
review at a future Commission meeting. Commissioner Dias suggested that the term of the 
new JPA should be consistent with the EBDA discharge permit. Commissioner Handely 
indicated that nitrogen and toxics loadings should be handled by a separate agreement so as 
not to overly complicate the new JPA. Commissioner Johnson inquired how the dynamic of 
EBDA would look if LVMA joined the JPA and if LAVMA would join or if the City of Livermore 
and DSRSD would have to join separately. Legal counsel for EBDA indicated that LAVMA could 
join the JPA. 
 

 
The Commission unanimously passed the following resolution: 

 
o Resolution Authorizing a Purchase Order to Royal Wholesale Electric for the Purchase of 

Two Variable Frequency Drives for the Alvarado Effluent Pump Station VFD Replacement 
Project No. 14-001 - Commissioner Dias moved to approve the resolution authorizing the 
General Manager to issue a purchase order to Royal Wholesale Electric for the purchase of 
two, (1) 150hp and (1) 250hp, variable frequency drives, not to exceed $88,861, for the 
Alvarado Effluent Pump Station.  

 
 

Page 118 of 127



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
QUARTERLY TRAVEL AND TRAINING EXPENDITURE REPORT

2ND QTR, FISCAL YEAR 2015

Board Members Description 1stO.tr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Beginning
Balance

Y-T-D

Expense
Balance

Available

FERNANDEZ. MANNY
Union City - State of the City Luncheon: Registration

TOTAL

30,00

30.00 0.0D 0.00 xft.00: ::S66QM.: ::::::30,0ft: ::4970.00

HANDLEY. TOM
Union City - State of the City Luncheon: Registration
59th CASA Conference: Registration
Fremont Chamber of Commerce - State of the State Luncheon: Registration

TOTAL

. 3000

50000

46.00

530.00 L 46:00 0.00 ::OJMl :::5000;Oo:: ::: 576.00. 4424.00

HARRISON. JENNIFER

TOTAL 0.00 ::o:bo 0.00 ::0JM xSOOOiOD:: :::::::0;0O: : 5000.00

KITE, PAT

TOTAL O.OO X0;00 0.00 0.00 ::: S000;00x :::: ::0;00: ::5000>0©

LATHI. ANJALI
Union City - State of the City Luncheon: Registration
59th CASA Conference: Registration
59th CASA Conference: Lodging
59th CASA Conference: Meals

59th CASA Conference: Mileage & Tips
Fremont Chamber of Commerce • State of the State Luncheon: Registration

TOTAL

30 00

50000

652 70

20 36
101.64

46.00

1,304.70 L 46.00 0.00 0.00 :500o;oo: 1,350:70: ::3649:30

GRAND TOTAL 1,864.70 1 92.00 ! o.oo ] 0.00 25000.00 1,956.70 23043.30

The Board of Directors' Quarterly Expenditure
Report is attached as part of the check register
in accordance with Board Member Business

Expense policy adopted September 5,1991Page 119 of 127



Regina McEvoy

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

tickets@eventbee.com

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 11:12 AM
Regina McEvoy
Printable Tickets - State of the State Luncheon & Forum

Dear Regina McEvoy.

Your registration for State of the State Luncheon & Forum is
confirmed.

Transaction ID: RK4XYDBHUL. Order Number: 10000228

eventbee"

Your confirmation email is generated by Eventbee. j_j Like US on Facebook

When: Starts - Friday, October 31. 2014 11:30 AM . finds - Friday, October 31. 2014 02:00 PM

Where: Fremont Marriott. 46100 I.andinu Parkwav Fremont. USA

Event URL: http: /sots2014,e\ entbec.com

Buyer Details: Reuina McEvov. reninairn/ unionsanitarv.ea.gov

Attendee Name Tickets (Qty) Price (S) Fee (S) Discount Total (S)

Paul Eldredge Chamber
Member Ticket -

regular lunch (1)

45.00 .00 0.00 46.00

Page 120 of 127



Tom Handley

AK6XXNPBCU

Chamber

Member Ticket -

regular lunch (1)

45.00 1.00 0.00 46.00

mini i
Anjali Lathi

AK6CXNHYSF

Chamber

Member Ticket -

vegetarian lunch
(1)

45.00 1.00 0.00 46.00

I
AK6XXNHYGC

Grand Total ($): 138.00

Page 121 of 127



Please print this confirmation email and bring it to the event.

Thank you for registering for State of the State Luncheon & Forum. We look forward to
seeing you at the event!

Event Manager.
Aaron Goldsmith

agoldsmith@fremontbusiness.com
510-705-2244

Tick here to yicyv j our tickct'purchaspsH

POWERED BY

1 event: '

jl FLAT fee per ticket sale, regardless of ticket price and
currency!

No more % fee, start selling tickets with Eyentfree.

Volume 3e
Start crowd selling with Volumehee!

Let foe crowd sell your product

Page 122 of 127



Page 123 of 127



Page 124 of 127



Page 125 of 127



Page 126 of 127



Page 127 of 127


	1 01-26-15 Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	Information 5. Monthly Operations Report for December 2014 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	6. Written Communications.
	7. Oral Communications.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

	2 Committee Notice
	Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite)
	Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy)

	4 01122015 Minutes
	UCALL TO ORDER.
	President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	UPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
	UROLL CALL.
	PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President
	Jennifer Toy, Vice President
	Tom Handley, Secretary
	Pat Kite, Director
	Anjali Lathi, Director
	STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
	Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
	Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
	Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
	Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager
	James Schofield, Collection Services Coach
	Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
	Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst
	Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
	UAPPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 8, 2014.

	5.1 Monthly Memo
	5.2 GM MOR Summary December 2014
	5.3 December 2014 Odor Report - Monthly Ops
	5.4 Odor Report Map December 2014
	5.5 Hours Worked
	5.6.1 Business Services Group Activities Report
	5.6.2 Budget & Finance Report
	5.6.3 Revenues & Expenses
	5.6.4 Portfolio Holdings Charts
	5.6.5 Portfolio Holdings Report
	5.6.6 Portfolio Activity Report
	5.6.7 Retiree Medical Fund Report
	5.6.8 Retiree Medical Fund CalPERS Report
	5.7 CS December 2015 Ops Report
	5.8 TS Monthly Ops Report - December 2014
	Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours:
	Construction Projects
	Boyce Road LS Phase 2 – Curtis/Thomas 
	Cogeneration Project – Raymond
	Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement – Chris E.
	Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Curtis
	Upper Hetch Hetchy SS Rehabilitation – Chris E.
	Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project - Chris P.
	Design/Study Projects
	Irvington Basin Master Plan Update – Capacity Assessment - Rollie
	Local Limits and Wastewater Treatability Study – Michael D.
	Seismic Study - Raymond
	Cast Iron Lining Phase VI – Andrew
	Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Phase VI – Andrew
	Alvarado-Niles Road SS Rehabilitation – Chris E.
	Pine St. Easement Improvements – Chris E.
	Plant Site Use Study – Curtis
	MCC and PLC Replacement Project, Phase 3 – Chris P.
	Generator Controls Upgrade Project – Chris P.
	Plant Facilities Improvements Project – Thomas
	Plant Lighting Study – Thomas
	Administrative and Field Operations Buildings Leak Investigation – Chris P.
	Pump Station Master Plan – Raymond
	Newark Backyard SS Relocation – Phase 2 – Rollie/Al B.
	Aeration Blower Project – Chris P.

	5.9 TD Monthly Ops Dec 2014
	Report Pages

	5.10 FMC Monthly Ops December 2014
	8 Publicly Available Pay Schedule
	1-26-15 Board Item - Approve PERS Publicly Available Pay Schedule
	1-1-2015 for Board Item

	9 Fourth Amended EBDA JPA memo and reso
	9 Fourth Amended EBDA JPA - memo
	9 Reso - Approve EBDA JPA Amended
	RESOLUTION NO.  _________
	A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FOURTH AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE EAST BAY DISCHARGERS AUTHORITY; AND AUTHORIZING THE BOARD CHAIRPERSON AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE THE FOURTH AMENDED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT


	10 09-25-2014 Special Board Meeting Minutes
	11 Resolution___ Accept Easement at Fremont Blvd and Landing Pkwy
	11.AgendaItemandResolutionDeltaAmEasementFINAL0120
	11.1 RESOLUTION NO
	11.2 VICINITY MAP
	11.3 Location Map
	11.4 GRANTDESCandPLAT

	12 Resolution___ Quitclaim Mission Falls Court-r
	12.Resolution___ Quitclaim Mission Falls Court.pdf
	12. AgendaItemandResolutionMissionFallsCourtEasementQuitclaimFINAL
	12.1 VICINITYMAPwithaerial011515
	12.3 MISSIONfALLSWarrenLLCQuitclaimFinal011515
	12.4 PLAT & LEGAL - 001 SEWER EASEMENT QUITCLAIM
	LEGAL-001
	PLAT-001-11x8.5


	12.1 RESOLUTION NO-rev.pdf

	13 Resolution __ Quitclaim of Sewer Easement Jarvis Ave
	13. Bd - Quitclaim of Sewer Easement Jarvis Ave
	13.1 LOCATION MAP R1
	Sheet1

	13.2 Resolution - Quitclaim of Tract 7285 SSE
	13.3 QUITCLAIM DEED and EXHIBITS A B

	14a Bd Ck Reg Rpt011615
	14b CALCard Quarterly Merchant Activity Report for FY 2015 Q2
	14c Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student Loan Program
	14d Info-Solar Facilities Update
	14d. Info-Solar Facilities Operational Update.pdf
	14d.1 Info-Table 1.pdf
	Payback Tracking


	14e Info-Update Subsurface Investigation AWWTP
	14e. Agenda-Info Update of Investigation Jan 2015.pdf
	14e.1 Figures 1 thru 4.pdf
	Alvarado WWTP Figure 2
	Alvarado WWTP Figure 4 - Rev 20080902

	14e.2 Table 2 - Results.pdf

	14f EBDA Report
	14g. Board Expenditures, 2nd Quarter, FY15 - info item
	99 Newspaper Clippings
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




